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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that 30th Annual GeneralMeeting of Shareholdersof Nikki Global
Finance Limited (CIN: Lq5999DL1986PLC024493) will be held on Friday, 30th

, day of
September,2016 at 3:30 P.M. at Mehta Farm, Village Chhawla, beyond BSF Camp,
Rajkhari,NazabgarhRoad,New Delhi - 110071to transactthe following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive,considerand adopt the auditedBalanceSheetas at 31sI March; 2016 andthe
Profit andLossAccount of the Companyfor the financial year endedon 31st March, 2016
andtheReportsof Board of Directors andAuditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. ShashwatAgarwal (DIN: 00122799),who retires
by rotation andbeing eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), following
resolutionasan ordinary resolution:-

,"RESOLVED THAT' pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the CompaniesAct,
.2013 ("Act") and other applicable provisions of the Act, if any and the Rules framed .
thereunder,as amended,from time to time, the Companyhereby ratifies appointmentof
Mls J Agarwal &. Associates,'Chartered Accountants (lCAl Firm RegistrationNo.
002601Cj.as auditors of theCompany to hold office from the conclusion of this'Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of thirty first Annual General Meeting of the
Company-to.be held-in :theyear 2017 at such remunerationas:may ibe mutually agreed
uponbetweenthe Board of Directors ofthe Companyandthe-Auditors,' " "

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider,and-if thought fit, to pa~ with or without modification, if any, the following -
resolutionasa Special Resolution>

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) subject to the suchconsent,

. sanction;permission or approval as may be necessary,consent of the membersof the
companybe and is hereby accordedto the Board of Directors of the'Companyto enter

. into contractsand/or arrangementswith related parties as defined under the Act in the
ordinary course of businessat fait market price andarm's length with respectto sale,
purchase or supply of any goods or materials, selling or otherwise disposing of, or
buying, leasing of property of any kind, availing or rendering of any services,
appointmentof agent for purchaseor sale of goods, materials, servicesor property or
appointmentof such related party to any office or place of profit in the Companyorits
subsidiary, if any, or associateCompany, if any, or any other transaction of whatever
naturewith relatedparties."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to take such steps as may be necessaryfor obtaining approvals,
statuary,contractualor otherwise, in relation to the aboveand to settleall mattersarising
out of and incidental thereto, and to signand executeall deeds,applications,documents
and writings that may be required,on behalf of the Companyand generallyto do all acts,
deeds,mattersand things that may be necessary,proper, expedientor incidental thereto
for the purposeof giving effect to this resolution."
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"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is

hereby authorized to determine the actual sums to be involved in the proposed

transaction(s) and the terms and conditions related thereto and to settle or resolve all

other matters 'arising out of or incidental to the proposed transactiorus)- and to do all acts,

deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto

for the purpose of giving effect tothis resolution."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all earlier contracts or arrangements as defined under
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder or under
Section 294, 294A of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 made by the Board of Directors
of the Company on behalf of the Company be and are hereby confirmed and ratified
being in ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis."

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the prOVISIOns of Section 180( 1) (c) and other
,applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 readwith rules made

thereunder (including all its statutory enactment(s) or modification(s) made therein from
time to time for time being in force) the Board of Directors of the Company (ligreinafter

'~alled the "Board" which term shall be deemed to include person(s) authorized and / or
committee {srwhich the.Board may have constituted or hereinafter, constitute to exercise .'
its powers, including the powers conferred by, this .resolution) be and are hereby

. authorized to borrow any sum or sums of money from time to time 'on such terms and
conditions-andwith or without security as the Board may/think fit which, together with
the .rnoneysalready borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained -
from the" Company's Bankers in the ordinary course of business), may exceed the
aggregate for the time being of the paid-up capital and its free reserves, that is to say, "
reserves not set apart for any specific purpose, provided that the total amount of
money/moneysso borrowed by the Board shall not.at any point of time exceed the limit ..
of Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Croses Only)."

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, if any, the following
resolution as a Special Resolution>

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT earlier loans under Section 180(1) (c) of the Companies
Act, 2013 or under Section 293(1) (d) of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 made by the
Board of Directors on behalf of the Company be and are hereby confirmed and ratified."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (the term Board may include any committee
already constituted or constituted thereafter or any person(s) be and is hereby authorized
to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual, or
otherwise, if any required, in relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of
and incidental thereto, and to sign and execute all deeds, applications, documents and
writings that may be required, on, behalf of the Company and to do all acts, deeds and ,
things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution."

For Nikki Global Finance Limited

Company Secretary
M. No.; A39187

Place: - New Delhi
Date: - 25.08.2016



I. An Explanatory Statementpursuantto Section102of the CompaniesAct, 2013relating to
the SpecialBusinessto be transactedat the Annual GeneralMeeting is annexedhereto.

NOTES:

2; A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY; TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL ON HIS / HER / THEiR BEHALF
ANn THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Pursuantto

" Section 10Sof the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a Proxy on behalf of not
more than fifty membersholding in aggregate,not more than tenpercentof the totalshare
capital.of the Company. Membersholding more than ten percentof the total sharecapital

_of the Company may appoint a single.personas Proxy, who shall not act as a Proxy for
.any.ether.Member, Theinstrument of Proxy, in order to be effective, shouldbe deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company,duly completed and signed, not later than 48
hours before the commencementof the meeting. A Blank Proxy Form (MGT 11) is
annexedto this Report. Proxiessubmittedon behalf of Limited Companies,Societies,etc.,
must be supportedby an appropriateresolution/ authority, asapplicable.

3. Corporate Members .intending to send their. authorized representativesto attend the
. meeting arerequested to sendto the Company,a certified copy of the Board Resolution

authorising their representativeto attendandvote in their behalf at theMeeting.
>If . ~ Jl': ~

4. -Tlie Register of Members and ShareTransferBooksof the Companywill be closedfrom
~Friday, '~eptember23,2016 to Friday, September30~20l6, both daysinclusive. h',

", . l

;' i. ,5. .Incase of joint holder attendingthe Meeting, only suchjoint holder who is higher ih the
.orderof nameswill be entitled to vote. " . , .

i;' 'e :.
;" ... ,:,.

:.:: '

'," . .' ..' ".<-' _ 'Oi"' ,,'/"' ')-"':1 ".

6. Additional Information pursuant to the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchangeand
r' ; 'SS-2iJ).respect of Director seekingre-appointmentas mentionedunder item no. 2 in the.

notice.of Annual GeneralMeeting is provided hereunder.The saidDirector hasfurnished.
necessarydocuments/declarations~r their re-appointment.'

Information of Directors being appointed/re-appointed as required under Regulation 36
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard -2:-

-

Name ofthe Director Mr. Shashwat Agarwal
Date of Birth 23.12.1961
Date of Appointment on the Board 26.03.2007
Number of Sharesheld in the Company 15326
Number of Meetings of the Board attendedlheld 9
Directorships held in other public companies(excluding 8
foreign companiesand GovernmentBodies)
ChairmanlMember in the committeesof the Boardsof 2
Companiesin which he is Director (includesonly Audit
Committee, Stakeholderrelationship Committeeand
Nomination and RemunerationCommittee) .

7. Notice of Annual GeneralMeeting with complete Annual Report for the Financial Year
2015-16 are available for inspection by the Members of the Company at the registered
office during normal businesshours on all working days,Except Saturdays,Sundaysand
Public Holidays, between 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. upto date of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company.
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a. Bring their copy of the annual report and duly filled attendanceslip(s) to attendthe
meetingandproduceit at the entrance,for admissionto the Meeting venue.

. b. Note that all correspondencerelating to share transfers should be addressedto
RegistrarandTransferAgent of the Company,viz. Skyline Financial ServicesPrivate

.:Limited, at D-153; 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-l, New Delhi -110020,Ph.

. No. 011-26812682-83/64732681-88, E-mail: admin@skylinerta.com.
c. Quotetheir DP ID No. IClient ID No. or folio numberin all their correspondence.

8. MemberslProxy(ies)are requestedto:

9. Members are requestedto notify immediately any change in their addressesto the
·Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Skyline Financial Services Private

, Limited for sharesheld in physical form and to their respectiveDepository Participants
(DP) for sharesheld in electronic form.

'. ' ,,1,_

•
, 10. Pursuantto Section 101 and Section l36 of the CompaniesAct, 20l3 readwith relevant

Rules madethereunder,Companiescan serveAnnual Reportsand other communications
through electronic mode to those Members who have registered their e-mail address

,either with the Comp.anyor with the Depository. Members,who have not registeredtheir
e-rnail address.with the Company, can now register the same with the Company by

.'sending an emailon ngfltd@rediffinail.com or info@nikkiglobal.com mentioning subject
: as to register email ides), or atadmin@skylinerta.com to our Registrar .and Transfer

,. _Agent, Mls. Skyline Financial Services PrivateLimited. Members holding shares'in
, "" demat form are requested to' register..their e-mail address with their Depository»

-Participanus)only. Members of the Company,who haveregisteredtheir e-mail address,
.•.are entitled -to receive.suoh communication in physical form upon-request. Thus the

JV'_'~:_ AnnualReport 2015.;16~aL{)ngwith the notice of Annual General Meeting, Attendance
,1.";'\'~'". ,Slip'~'Blank Proxy Form,EMGlhll}are,,:beingsent by.electronicmodeto those.Members»,

whose e-mail addresses).:areregistered with the CompanylDepositories,unless any
Member has requestedfor a physical copy of thesedocuments.For Memberswho have .

·not -registered their e-mail addresses,physical copies are being sent by the permitted,
• •mode. .

.
',.

. i

.' .i~ •

. IT. Pleasenote that the meeting is for members or their proxies only. Pleaseavoid being
accompaniedby non membersand children.

12. Membersofthe Companycanopt anyone of the modefor Voting:

(i). Re-moteE-voting
(ii) E-voting at Venueof AnnualGeneral Meeting
(iii)Through Ballot 1Poll Papersat venueof Annual GeneralMeeting

, Members are requestedto opt only one mode of voting and if the Members optedmore .'
·than one mode then vote cast through E-voting will prevail and voting cast by other
modeswill be treatedinvalid.

13. Voting rights shall be reckonedon the paid up value of sharesregisteredin the nameof
the Membersason September23, 2016.

14. The Scrutinizer will submit his consolidated report (i.e. including voting by all means-
Voting through Re-mote E-voting, E-voting at venue of Annual General Meeting and
through Ballot/Poll Paper)to the Chairman or any other Director after the completionof
voting at Annual General Meeting and the results of voting will be declared by the
Chairman or any other Director onor before October 3, 2016 at the RegisteredOffice of
the Company at 1-9, LGF, Lajpat Nagar-l , New Delhi - 110024 and will also be
displayed on the website of the Company i.e. www.nikkiglobal.com and communicated

..



~--....;..------------.--.--.-.-.---..- ._.•...._ ..•._- .

to the Stock.Exchange and also to the agency which is providing Re-mote E-voting
Facility or E-voting at Venue of Annual GeneralMeeting of the Company.

15. Voting through Electronic means:

(i) In compliance with the Regulation 44 of Securitiesand Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015 and Section
108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleasedto offer the facility of voting
through electronic means and the business set out in the Notice above may be
transactedthrough such electronic voting. The facility of voting through electronic
means is provided through the e-voting platform of Central Depository Services.
(India) Limited (hereinafter referredasCDSL).

{ii) The facility of electronic voting and Ballot / Poll Paper shall be provided to the
Members at the Annual General Meeting who have not yet cast their vote either
throughRe-moteE-voting.

16.A personwho has ac.quiredthe sharesand hasbecomea Member of the Companyafter
.' the despatchof the Notice of the AGM and prior to the Cut-off date i.e. 23rdSeptember,

2016, shall be entitled to exercisehis/her vote for all the items specified in the Notice of
·AGM.·

17.The e-voting will commence'on Monday, September26, 2016 at (9:00 Hours 1ST)and
.: will close on Thursday, 29th September,2016 at (17:00 Hours 1ST).During this period,

the Members-of-the Companyholding shareseither in physical form er in dematform as.
on the ·Cut-off·.date'i,.e. September·23, 2016, may cast their wote .electronically. The

~.,Members will not be able-tocast their .vote electronically beyond'thedate .and time. .
mentionedaboyeand the electronic voting module shall be disabledfor voting byCDSL .' .
thereafter.

. ... .'

18. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she.shall not be allowed to
. changeit subsequentlyor castthe vote again.

19. The facility for voting through BallotIPoll Paperwould be made available at theAGM
. andthemembersattendingthe·meetingwho havenot alreadycasttheir votesby Re-mote

E-voting shall be able to exercisetheir right at the meetingthrough BallotIPoll Paper.The
memberswho havealready casttheir vote by Re-moteEwoting prior to the meeting,may
alsoattendthe Meeting,'but shall'notbeentitled to casttheir vote again.

20; The voting rights of the membersshall be in proportion to their share in the paid up
equity sharecapitalof the Companyason the Cut-off datei.e. September23,2016.

2LThe Company has appointed Ms. Neha lain, Practicing Company Secretary,Kanpur
(MembershipNo. 8123; CP No. 10628)as the Scrutinizer for electronic voting process
(including remote E-voting and E-votingat the venue of AGM), and voting at Annual
GeneralMeeting through BallotIPolI Paper,in a fair andtransparentmanner.

22. The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

(i) The voting period beginsMonday, September26,2016 at (9:00 Hours 1ST)andends
. on Thursday, 29th September, 2016 at (17:00 Hours 1ST). During this period
shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) September23, 2016 may

s
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a. For CDSL: 16digits beneficiaryID,

b. For NSDL: 8 CharacterDP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number

registeredwith the Company.

cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for
voting thereafter.

(ii) The shareholdersshould log on to the e-voting websitewww.evotingindia.com.

Dividend

Bank

Details

OR Date

of. Birth

(DOB)

(iii) Click on Shareholders.

(iv) . Now Enter your User ID

(v) Next enterthe ImageVerification asdisplayedandClick on Login.

(vi) If you are holding sharesin dematform and had loggedon to www.evotingindia.com
and voted on an earlier voting of any company,then your existing passwordis tobe

used.

e-

(vii) If you area first time userfollow the stepsgiven below:

FQr Members' holding sharesin Demat Form and Physical Form

,.-
•••• <Enter.yousl 0 digit:-~lpha-humericPAN issuedby Income-Tax Department

(Applicable for both dematshareholdersaswell asphysical shareholders)

.,.' Members who. have not updated· their PAN with the

,. e Company/DepositoryParticipant are requestedto use the first two

letters of their nameand the 8 digits of the sequencenumber in the

PAN field.

• In casethe sequencenumber is lessthan 8 digits enter the applicable

number ofO's beforethe numberafter the first two charactersof the

name in CAPITAL letters.Eg. If your name is RameshKumar with

sequencenumber 1thenenterRAOOOOOOOIin the PAN field.

. '

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Dateof Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as

recordedin your demataccountor in the companyrecordsin order to login.

• If both the details are not recordedwith the depository or company

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank

details field asmentionedin instruction (iv).

(viii) After entering thesedetailsappropriately,click on "SUBMIT" tab.

Ox) . Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company

selection screen.However, membersholding sharesin dematform will now reach

'PasswordCreation' menuwherein they are requiredto mandatorily enter their login

passwordin the new passwordfield. Kindly note that this passwordis to be

•



(xv)· ',Qnce y~u)-_"CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to _ .

modify your vote. I,

also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutionsof any other companyon

which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through

CDSL platform. It is strongly recommendednot to shareyour passwordwith any

other personandtake utmostcareto keepyour passwordconfidential.

(x) For Members holding sharesin physical form, the details can be used only for e-

voting on the resolutionscontainedin this Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN ofNikki Global FinanceLimited on which you chooseto vote.

(xii) . On the voting page, you will see"RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and againstthe

samethe option "YESINO" for voting. Selectthe option YES or NO as desired.The

option YES implies that youassentto the Resolutionandoption NO implies that you

dissentto the Resolution.

(xiii) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entireResolution

details.

. (xiv) . After-selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A·

confirmation box will be displayed.If you wish to confirmyour vote, click on "OK",

elseto changeyour vote; click on "CANCEL" andaccordinglymodify your vote..

(XYi). You can also take a print oftb; votescastby clicking on "Click hereto print" option-

on the Voting page. <-

(xvii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login passwordthen Enter the User ID

and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password& enter the details as

prompted by the system.

(xviii) Shareholderscan also cast th~ir vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available

for android basedmobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloadedfrom GooglePlay

Store. Pleasefollow the instructions asprompted by the mobile app while voting on

your mobile.

(xix) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and.Custodians

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRT etc.) and
-

Custodianare required to log on to www.evotingindia.com andregisterthemselvesas .

Corporates.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign ofthe entity

should be emailedtohelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

•



.• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the

admin loginand password.The ComplianceUser would be ableto link the account(s)

for which they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked In the login should be mailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comand on approvalof the accountsthey would be able

to casttheir vote.

• A scannedcopy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they

have issuedin favour of the Custodian,if any, should be uploadedin PDF format in

the systemfor the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (.oFAQs") and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com.under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Contact Details:

'. .Company

" I

Mr. AsheshAgarwal, ManagingDirector,
Nikki Global FinanceLimited
Regd.Office: 1-9,LGF, Lajpat Nagar-l, New Delhi-

, 110024,
CIN: L65999DL1986PLC024493
Telefax: 011-64000323,
E-maiUD: investors@nikkiglobal.com, ' '\'

'. Website:www.nikkiglobal.com

.: '..:/.

"-:t> ,.

Skyline Financial ServicesPrivateLimited
D-1S~ 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I,
New Delhi - 110020,
Tel: +91-11-64732681to 88.Fax: +91-11-26812682
E-mail: admin@skylinerta.com

..
Registrar and
Transfer Agent

Remote e-voting Agency CentralDepository Services(India) Limited
E-niail ID: helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
PhoneNos.: 022- 22723333/-8588

. ; ,

Scrutinizer , : Ms. NehaJain
PractisingCompanySecretary
E-mail ID:nehajainI15@gmail.com.
PhoneNo.: 0512-2332397

8
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

The'following Explanatory Statement,pursuantto Section 102 of the CompaniesAct, 2013
("Act"), setsout all material facts relating to the businessmentionedat Item Nos.4 to 5 of
.the accompanyingNotice datedAugust 25,2016:

Item No.4:-

The Boardof Directors of the Companyarealwaysmaking efforts to regulateand monitor all
transactionswith the related party(ies) though all the transactionsare being in ordinary
courseof businessand at arm's length basisonly. wherever, it is proposedto enter into any
transactionwith related party (ies) not being in ordinary course of businessand or/ not at
arm's'length basisand in excessof the limits prescribedunder the Rule 15 of Companies
(Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014, it will be subject to further approval of
membersof the company as requited under Section 188 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read
with rules made thereunder. All earlier transactionsentered into by company with related
party under Section.f Sf or Section 294 or 294A or any other provisions of the erstwhile
CompaniesAct, are being hereby confirmed and ratified which were entered in ordinary
courseof businessand atarm's length basis.

The proposedresolution is in the interest of the Company and Board of Directors of the
Companyrecommendthis·resolution set out in the notice as Special Resolution and Board

'~, further recommend to ratify all earlier contracts or arrangementsentered with related as
'J'. ' 'defined under Section l88 of the':CompaniesAct, 2013 or under Section294, 294A or any

, other' provisions.'of the Companies Act, 1956 which were entered in ordinary course of
businessandat arm's length basis.

't ".. None of the Directors-Key managerialpersonnelor their·relative is any way.concernedor.
interested in this rresolution except as Director or Shareholder.himself or through their
relatives.

The Boardrecommends the resolutio~ assetout at Item No; 4 ofithe Notice for-approval by
the Membersof the Company.

Item No.S:-

In accordancewith the provisions of section180(1)(c) of CompaniesAct, 2013,the Boardof
'Directors of the company make borrowings as and when necessaryfor the working capital
requirementsand for the smooth running of the businessof the companyon suchterms and

, .conditions as may deem fit ..In view of the potential growth of the businessof the company
and anticipated need of additional funds that may be required in the near future, it was

"considered essential to borrow funds from diverse sources for various business
activities/initiatives under taken by the company, consequent to which the amount so
borrowed and outstanding either has exceededor about to exceed the limit as prescribed
under Section 180(1) (c) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Section 293(1) (d) of the
erstwhile CompaniesAct, 1956.

Pursuantto the provisions of aforesaidSection,approvalofthe shareholdersis requiredto be
taken by way of special resolution in generalmeeting if the money borrowed, togetherwith
the moneyalreadyborrowed by the companyexceedsthe limit of:

• One,hundred percent of its paid up sharecapital and free reserve, apart from the
temporary loans obtained by the company's bankers in the ordinary course of
business.

•



Your approval is being sought by voting on this resolution pursuant to the provisions of
Section 180(1)of CompaniesAct, 2013.

To meet out the future fund requirementsfor the company,if any, the Board of Directors are
seekingyour approval by way of passingSpecial resolution so that the provisions of Section
180 could be better complied and all the transaction done or to be done by the company
pursuant to Section 180(1) (c) or under Section 293 Cl) (d) and to comply with the"
requirementsof the said Section(s),your directorsrecommendthe resolution assetout in the
Item no. 5 of the notice to bepassedasSpecialResolution.

c

None of the Directors, Key managerialpersonnelor their relative is any way concernedor
interested in this resolution except as Director or Shareholderhimself or through their
relatives.

TheBoard recommendsthe resolution asset out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approvalby
the Members of the Company.

For Nikki Global FinanceLimited

·fv:,~.A17
. ~ ~ . ~. . . .

Company Secretary
M. No.: A39187

.Place: -New Delhi
Date:- 25.08.2016

. . '.

•
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DIRECTOR'S RErORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 30th Annual Report together with the
Audited Statementof Accounts for the year endedon 31st March, 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

Financial Results of the Company for the year under review alongwith figures for the

previous year are as follows:
Amount in (Rs.)

PARTICULARS FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Loss before Depreciation and Tax (PBT)
Less: Depreciation
Loss before Tax
Less: Provision for taxation
Loss after Tax (PAT)
EPS(Basic)
Diluted.

3,04,38,325.00 2,35,06,254.00
3,11,88,553.00 2;66,30,021.00

(7,50,228.00) (31,23,767.00)
0.00 9291.00

(7,50,228.00) (31,33,058.00)
0.00 0.00

(7,50,228.00) (31,33,058.00)
(0.26) 'f/ (0.92)

(0.26) (0.92)

DEPOSITS:

The Company has no public depositsas on date and will not acceptany deposits without
.'priorapproval of the Statutory Authorities concerned.

DIVIDEND:

Due to loss(es),The Board ofDirectois doesnot recommend any dividend.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

..' The particulars of loans or guaranteesandinvestments covered under the provisions of
Section186 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 have beendisclosed in the financial statements.

During the year, there has been no change in investments of the Company and the
changesin loans or guaranteeshave beendisclosed in fmancial statements..

STATE OFTHE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS:.·

•
Since last year, there were no changesin the State of company's affairs and there have
beenno changein nature of businessof the Company during the Year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Due to loss(es), no appropriation has been made by the Company in its reservesduring
the financial year 2015-16. .

MATERIAL C~ANGES AND COMMITEMENTS:

Therehave beenno material changesand commitments during the year.

\ \
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The scopeand authority of the Internal Auditors is subject
to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.and rules made thereunder. To maintain its
objectivity and independence,the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.of the Board and to the Managing Director.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficiency and adequacy of
internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems,
accountingproceduresand policies of the Company. Basedon the report of internal audit
function, processowners undertake.corrective action in their respective areasand thereby
strengthenthe controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations along with
corrective actions thereon arepresentedto the Audit Committee of the Board.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Directors:

Mr. Shashwat Agarwal (DIN: 00122799) retires by rotation and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment. Your Directors recommendhis re-appointment.

Subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 readwith rules made thereunder and
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The Board
of Directors of the Company have an optimum constitution.

The Members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on September 29,
2015; approvedappointment of:

(a) Mr. Ashesh Agarwal, who w~s liable to retire at the last AGM held in the year -
2015.

(b) Mrs. Kavita Awasthi, as IndependentDirector for 5 years commencing from
March 26, 2015.

(c) Mr. Ashesh Agarwal as Managing Director for 3 years with effect from
September1,2015 to August 31, 2018.

Declaration by the Independent Directors of the Company:

•

Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the
Company confirming that they meet with the criteria of independence.as prescribed
under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Regulation
16 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and. Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, .2015 and there has been no change in the circumstances
from last Financial Year which may affect their statusas IndependentDirector during the
year.

As required under Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, '2015, the particulars of the
Directors proposed for appointment/re-appointment has been given in the Notice of the
Annual GeneralMeeting, .

\l
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Key Managerial Personnel:

There have been changesin Key Managerial Personnel(s)during the financial year 2015-
16,Details are given asunder:

S. Name Designation Date of Date of
No.: Appointment Resignation
1 Ms. Mahima Company Secretary 21/0412015 1110712015

Khandelwal cum Compliance
Officer

2 Ms. Gunjita Kalani Company Secretary 08/12/2015 Continuing
cum Compliance
Officer

The Members of the Company at Annual General Meeting held on September29, 2015
approved re-appointment of Mr. Ashesh Agarwal as Managing Director of the Company
for 3 years. Mr. Sanjay Jain is continuing as Chief Financial Officer of the Company
w.e.f. March 26,2015.

Board Evaluation:

The Board of Directors has carried out. an annual evaluation of its own performance,
Board committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 readwith rules made thereunder and under Regulation 16 of Securities and .
ExchangeBoard of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations,
2015.

The performance of the Board was evaluatedby the Board after seeking inputs from all
the Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure,
effectivenessof Board processes,information and functioning, etc.

•
The performance of the committees was evaluatedby the Board after seeking inputs from
the committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of
committees,effectiveness of committee meetings,etc.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (''NRC'') reviewed the
.performance of the individual directors on the basis -of the criteria such as the
contribution .of the individual· director. to the Board and committee meetings like
preparednesson the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution
and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key··
.aspectsof his role.

In a separate meeting of independent Directors, performance of non-independent
directors, performance of the board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was
evaluated, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive
directors-.The samewas discussedin the board meeting that followed by the meeting of
the independent Directors, at which the performarice of .the Board, its committees and
individual directors was also discussed.

\3
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 134(5)_of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the
bestof theirknowledge and ability, state the following: .

a. that in the preparation of the annual accounts,the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures,
ifany;

b. that directors have selectedsuch accounting policies and applied consistently and
judgements and estimatesthat are reasonableand prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the stateof affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the loss of the Company for that period;

c. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assetsof the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d. The Directors have preparedthe annual accountson a going concern baSIS;

e. The Directors have laid down such internal financial controls that are adequate
and operating effectively;

f. The Directors have devised systemsto ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systemswere adequateand operating effectively.

AUDITORS & AUDITOR'S REPORT:

Pursuantto the provisions ofSection.139 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder,Mzs
J Agarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAIFirm Registration No. 002601C),
were appointed as statutory auditors of the Company from the conclusion of the twenty
eight annual general meeting (AGM) ofthe Company held on September29,2014 till the
conclusion of the thirty first annual general meeting (AGM) to be held-in the year 2017,
subject to ratification of their re-appointment at every AGM.

The Company has.received a letter from statutory auditors to the effect that their re- .
appointment, if made, would be-within the provision prescribed under Section 139 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013. Your Directors recommendtheir re-appointment.

The auditor's report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverseremarks
. andNotes to the financial statementsreferred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory
and therefore, do not call for any comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR'S REPORT:

I-

t

t

Pursuantto the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies"Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, the Company had appointed Ms. Neha .Jain, Practising Company Secretary,
Kanpur to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2015-
16. The SecretarialAudit Report for financial year 2015-16 is annexed,which forms part
of this report as Annexure-A. With regard to comments of Secretarial Auditor, we wish

. to statethat due tonon-functioning of MCA Portal and our system, the sameescapedthe
attention to be filed. However, we shall file the sameas soon aspossible.

,Lt
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All relatedparty transactionsthat were enteredinto during the financial year were on
arm's lengthbasisandwerein theordinarycourseof thebusiness.Further,therewereno
materially significant with the relatedparty transactionsduring the year madeby the
Companywith Promoters,Directors, Key Managerial Personnelor other designated
persons.Since,therewereno materialcontracts/arrangementsmadeduring the year,and
all suchcontracts/arrangementsweremadein ordinary courseof businessand at arm's
lengthbasisanddetailsof suchtransactionshavebeengiven in financial statementsof
theCompanyandthis facthasbeenmentionedin attachedAnnexure-B in FORM AOC-
2.Detailsof all suchcontracts/arrangementsareavailablefor inspectionat theRegistered
Office of the Companytill. ensuingAnnual GeneralMeeting and if any, memberis ..
interestedin inspectingthe same,suchmembermay write to the CompanySecretaryin
advance. ..

CODEOF CONDUCT:

All theMembersof the Boardandall the employeesof the Companyhavefollowed the
policy of Code of Conduct in the courseof day to day businessoperationsof the
Company.The Codehasbeenplacedon the Company'swebsitewww.nikkiglobal.com.
TheCodeJaysdownthe standardprocedureof businessconductwhich is expectedto be
followedby theDirectorsandthedesignatedemployeesin their businessdealingsandin
particularon mattersrelating to integrity in the work place,in businesspracticesandin
dealingwith stakeholders. .

. t .
All the Board Members and the Senior Managementpersonnel have confirmed .
compliancewith theCode.

. . .

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:- .

Thereareno Subsidiaries,JointVenturesor AssociateCompanies.

DISCLOSURES:

Audit Committee:

: "
. The Audit Committee comprisesof IndependentDirectors namely Mr. Gaya Prasad
Gupta,Mr. SubodhAgarwal,Mr. ManojKumar andMr. ShashwatAgarwalasExecutive
Directorof theCompany.

The Audit Committeeplayedan importantrole duringthe year. It coordinatedwith the
Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and other key Managerial Personnelof the
Companyandhasrenderedguidancein the areasof internalaudit and control, finance
andaccounts. ..

All. the recommendationsmadeby the Audit Committeewere acceptedby the Board.
Fourmeetingsofthe Audit Committeewereheld duringtheyear.

StakeholdersRelationship Committee:

The Comrriitteehasmet four times during the year, the Committeeoverlook the usual
requestsreceivedfor Dematerialization,transfer/transmissionof sharesandresolvedor
answeredthecomplaintsofmembers..

•
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

TheNominationandRemunerationCommitteerecommendsto the Boardthe suitability
..of candidatesfor appointment as Key Managerial Personnel,Directors and the

remurierationpackagespayable to them and other employees.The Nomination and
. .

. Remunerationmetfour times duringtheyear.

VigillVlechanismlWhistleBlower Policy:

The Company is committed to the high standardsof Corporate Governance.and
stakeholderresponsibility.TheCompanyhasestablisheda vigil mechanismto beknown
as the 'Whistle Blower Policy' for its Directors and employees,to report instancesof
unethicalbehaviour,actual or suspected,fraud or.violation of the Company'sCodeof

. Conduct.Theaim of thepolicy is to provideadequatesafeguardsagainstvictimizationof
whistle blower who avails of the mechanismand also.provide.direct accessto the
Chairmanof theAudit Committee,in appropriateor exceptionalcases.

. Accordingly, 'Whistle Blower Policy'has been formulatedwith a view to provide a
..mechanismfor theDirectorsandemployeesof theCompanyto approachtheEthics.

Thepurposeof this policy is to providea frameworkto promoteresponsibleandsecure
whistle. blowing. It protects employeeswilling to raise a concern about serious

. irregularitieswithin theCompany.

Number of Meetingsof the Board:

•. !.... •

Preventionof Insider Trading:

The Company.hasadopteda Codeof Conductfor Preventionof InsiderTradingwith a
view to regulatetrading in securitiesby the Directorsanddesignatedemployeesof the
Company.,The Code requirespre-c1earancefor dealing in the Company's·sharesand
prohibits the purchaseor saleof Companysharesby the.Directors and the designated
employeeswhile in possessionof unpublishedprice sensitiveinformation in relationto
the Company.The Board is responsiblefor implementationof the Code. All Board
Directorsandthedesignatedemployeeshaveconfirmedcompliancewith theCode.

BusinessRisk Management:

Themain identified risks at the Companyarebusinessoperatingrisks. Your Company
hasestablisheda: comprehensivebusinessrisk managementpolicy to ensurethe risk to
the Company'scontinued existenceass going concernand to its developmentare
identifiedandaddressedontimely basis.Risk managementstrategyasapprovedby the
Boardof Directorsis implementedby theCompanyManagement.

Corp~rateSocialResponsibility Statement: .

TheCorporateSocialResponsibilityis not applicableontheCompany.

..
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Information Pursuant to Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013:

The information. required pursuant to Section 197 read with rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of

.' employeesof the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the
Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the members and others entitled thereto,
excluding the information on employees' particulars which is available for inspection by
the membersat the Registered office of the company during businesshours on working
days of the company up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any, member

. is interestedin inspecting the same,suchmember maywrite to the Company Secretary in

advance.

Extract of Annual Return:

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 are annexed
to this Report asAnnexure-C.

Independent Directors Meeting:

The Independent Directors met on 29th March, 2016, without the attendancerof Non-
. Independent Directors and members of. the Management. The Independent Directors
reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole; the
performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors.and assessedthe quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information betweenthe Company Management and the Board that
is necessaryfor the Board to effectively andreasonablyperform their duties.

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption,· Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo:

Particulars relating to conservationof energy and technology absorption stipulatedin the'
Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014are not applicable on theCompany.

During the year, there were no Foreign Exchangeearningsand outgo.

Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis Report:

Separatereports on Corporate Governancecompliance and Management Discussion and
Analysis as required under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which forms part of this Annual Report
along with the.Certificate from Statutory Auditors of the Company regarding compliance
of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015.

In compliance with Corporate Governancerequirements, your Company has formulated
and implemented a Code of Business'Conduct and Ethics for all Board members and
senior management personnel of the Company, who have affirmed the compliance
thereto.

•



Details of significant and material orders passedby the Regulators or Courts or
. Tribunals impacting the going concernstatusand company'soperationsin future:

There were no such order passedby the Regulations or Courts or Tribunals which may
impact the going concern statusand company's operations in future.

.Disclosureunder SexualHarassmentof Women:

The Company has Sexual Harassment Policy in place and available on the Company's
website www.nikkiglobal.com. During the year under review, there were no complaints

fromany of the employee.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your directors take this opportunity to extend their thanks to the customers, business,
partners, business associates and bankers of the Company for their continued support
during the year. The directors also sincerely acknowledge the dedication and commitment
of the employeesof the company atall levels.

FOR NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED

(Ga~itGuPta)
Director

DIN: 00335302

Place:New Delhi
Date: 25~08.2016
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2016

[Pursuant to Section 204(1~ of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of ManagerlalPersonnellkules, 2014]

I
TO,
THE MEMBERS)
NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED
i-s, lGF, LAJPATNAGAR-I,
NEWDELH!-110024

I haveconducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory

provislqns and the adherence to good corporate practices by NIKKI GJOBAl

'FINANCE LIMITED (hereinafter called "the company"). Secretarial Audit was

conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

,"
Basedon my verification of the books, papers} minute books, forms and returns filed

and other records maintained by lithe company" a-ndalso the information provided
~. ./ I

by lithe Company"} its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the

conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 315
\ 2016}

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company.

has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in

. the manner.and subject to the reporting made hereinafter-:

I

I
I.
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NEHAJAIN
COMPANY SECRETARY

OFFICE NO. 811, 8TH fLOOR,
KAN CHAMBERS,

14/113 CIVIL LINES,

KANPUR - 208001 (UP)

PH - (OS12) 2332397
EMAIL -nehajain11S@gmail.com

I have examined the books} papers, minute books, forms and returns flIedand other

records maintained by NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED for the financial year ended

on March 31s
t, 2016 according to the provisions of:

•

i) The Companies Act) 2013 (The Act) and the Rules made there

under;

in The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRN) and the rules made there
d "un er;

iii) The Depositories Act} 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

.iv) -Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there

. under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and

External Commercial Borrowings;

'{) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and '

Exchange Board of India Act 1992 ('SEBI Act'k-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of: Shares

and Takeovers) Regulatlods, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 1992 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition

of insiderTrading] Regulations, 2015; .

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme

. and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt

Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing

with client;

20
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NEHAJAIN

COMPANY SECRETARY
OFFICE NO. 811, 8TH FLOOR,

KAN CHAM BERS,

14/113 CIVil LINES}

KANPUR - 208001 (UP)

PH - (0512) 2332397
EMAIL-nehaJain115@gmail.com

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Dellstlng of Equity Shares)

Regulations, 2009;

h) The Securities and- Exchange Board of India (Buvback Securities)

Regulations, 1998;

I further report that, as per the management representation letter for Secretarial
Audit, there is no specific law, applicable to the company. "

I have also examined compliance with the applicable ciauses of the following:

"'.

.. .. .

a") Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,

as applicable w.eJ. 1st July, 2015;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and Disclosure-

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to listing agreement enteredinto by

the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

•During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the

Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the

following observations:

The Form MGT-14 pursuant to Section 179(3}(d) and If] is pending to be filed till the

date of signing of this report. However, the aggregate of Loans and Investments is
subject to the compliance with Section 186 of The Companies Act, 2013.

I further report that.-

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The

changes in the .composltion of the Board of Directors that took place during the
" .

period under review Were carried out in compliance with the provi . he Act.

a\
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PH - (0512)2332397

EMAll:-nehajainl15@gmail.com

Adequate notices were given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings,

agenda and detailed notes on agenda were also sent at least seven days in advance,

and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications

on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the

meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting member's views are

captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

"

Ifurther report thate-

There exist systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and

'operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Jaws,

rules, regulations and guidelines.

Ifurther report that during the a",dit period, there were no instances of:

a) Public Issue/Rights lssue/. Debentures/Sweat Equity, etc:

b) Redemption / buy-back of securities;

c) Any major decisions taken bythe members in pursuance to section 180 of the

,Companies Act, 2013;

d) Merger j'amalgamation / reconstruction, etc:

e) Foreign technical collaborations.

~.-.

I

I •..•

Date:25/08/2016

.Place: Kanpur

', ~1

I
I

I

i

r"

I
t ".
I

C~P.e.1062.
FCSNo.: 8123

C P No.: 10628



Annexure B

FORM NO. AOC -2

Form for disclosureof particulars of contracts/arrangementsentered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section(1) of Section188of the CompaniesAct, 2013
including certain arms length transactionsunder third proviso thereto.

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134ofthe Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014]. .

. 1. .Details of contracts or arrangementsor transactions not at arm's length basis: N.A.

(a)Name (s) of the related party &nature of relationship-

Cb) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions-

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions-

(d) Salient terms ofthe contracts or arrangementsor transaction including the value.jf any-

(e) Justification for entering into suchcontracts or arrangementsor transactions-

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board-

(g) Amount paid asadvances,if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passedin General meeting as required under first
. .

..proviso toSection 188-

2. Details of material contracts or arran~ments or transactions at arm's length basis: see note
given below".

(a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship-

.(b)N ature of contractsIarrangements/transactions-

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions-

(d) Salientterms of the contracts or.arrangementsor transactionsincluding the value, ifany-

{e) Date(s) of approvalby the Board, ifany:

. .

(f) Amount paid as advances,if any:

*Note:all the contracts or arrangements or transactions were made in ordinary course of
businessand at arm's length basis during thefinancial year 2015-16 and there were
no material contracts or arrangements or transactions and details of transactions with
related party(ies) are given in Financial Statementsfor the financial year ended on
31.03.2016.

•



- - ----------------------:-----------------------------~
Annexure L

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on 31st March, 2016

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013
and rule 12(1) ofthe Companies (Management &Administration) Rules, 2014~ -

- I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. CIN L65999DL1986PLC024493

2. Registration Date 13/06/1986

3. Name of the Company Nikki Global Finance Limited

4. Category/Sub-category of Company LimitedBy Shares1Finance Company
the Company-

5. Address of the Registered I~~,I.,GF,LAJPATNAGAR-1, NEW DELHI -110024
office & contact details Telefax: +91-11-64000323

6. Whether listed company Yes

7. Name, Address & contact Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
details of the Registrar & D-153, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-l , New
Transfer Agent, ifany. Delhi -110020 -

Tel :011 -64732681-88
Fax:011 -26812682 t'"

Email: admin~skylinerta.com

II~ PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall
be stated) -
SI. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the company

-No. products 1 services Product/service

1 -Shares - 661 _ 100.00

,', .

Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIAkY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES- N.A.

SLNo. NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/SUB SI % of shares Applicable
ADDRESS OF THE DIARY/ASSOCIA held Section

COMPANY TE
1 - - - - -

2 - - - - -
"

- IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Sharesheld at the end of the year %
Shareholders Change

Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total %of during

'. Shares Total the year

Shares

A. Promoters I-
- --

(1) Indian .

a) Individual/ 266824 100 266924 7.81 266824 lOO 266924 7.81 0.00
HUF
bjCentral 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Govt.

•
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I c) State 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
, Go\1(S)

I d) Bodies 0 0 0 I 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
; Corp. I

! e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 ! 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

! f) Any other ... 0 0 0
I

0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00I

Sub Total (A) 266824 100 266924 7.81 266824 100 266924 7.81 0.00
(1)

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs- 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Individuals
b) other- 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Individuals

c) B~dies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Corp. •
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

e) Any Other .... 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (A) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(2) ...
Total

.,/

shareholding
of Promoter 266f24 100 266924 7.81 266824 100 266924 7.81 0.00
(A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

,I

B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 .0.00
Funds

b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
c) Central
Govt. & State 1200 0 1200 0.04 1200 0 1200 0.04 - 0.00
Govt. (s)
d) Venture 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Capital Funds
e) Insurance 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Companies
f) FIls 0 ·0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
g) Foreign 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Venture

./

Capital Funds
i) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00.
(specify) ...

Sub-total
1200 0 1200 0.04 1200 0(B)(1):- 1200 0.04 0.00

2. Non-
Institutions
a) Bodies
Corp.
i) Indian 417426 1000 418426 12.23 569857 1000 570857 16.69 4.46
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 - 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Individuals
i) Individual
shareholders .

holding
1128761 70852 1199613 35.07 1268134 108552 1376686 40.26 5.19nominal share

capital up to
Rs.11akh I
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ii) Individual

! I Ishareholders
holding
nominal share 1097236 0

I
1097236

I
32.08 822800 94100 916900 26.81 (5.27)

capital in
excess of Rs 1 I Ilakh I I

c) Others:
,

Non Resident
110660 0 110660 3.24 965 0 965 0.03 (3.21 )

Indians
Hindu
Undivided 324717 0 324717 9.50 286168 0 286168 8:36 (1.14)

Family
Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Corporate
Bodies
Foreign 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Nationals •
Clearing 924 0 924 0.03 0 0 0 0.00 (0~03)
Members
Trusts 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Foreign Bodies. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
-DR·

.Sub-total
3079724 71852 3151576 92.15 2947924 203652 3151576 92.15 0.00

(B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding

3080924 71852 3152776 92.19 2949124 203652 3152776 92.19 0.00(B)=(B)(l)+ .
(B)(2)

C. Shares held -
by Custodian

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
forGDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
3347748 71952 3419700 100.00 3215948 203752 . 3419700 100.00

(A+B+C) -

. I
- !

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters:

SI. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the year %
No. the year change

No. of % of total %of No. of % of total %ofShares III

Shares Shares of Shares Shares' Shares of Pledged/ shareho

.the" Pledged / the encumbere Iding

company encumber company d to total during

ed to total shares the year

shares
1 Arun Prakash Setia 100 0.00 0.00 100 0.00 0.00 0.00
2 Shashwat Agarwal 15326 0.45 0.00 15326 0.45 0.00 0.00
3 Kamal Kishore 251498 7.36 0.00 251498 7.36 0.00 0.00

Chaurasia

Total 266924 7.81 0.00 266924 7.81 0.00 -

(Hi) Change in Promoters' Shareholding:

There wasno change in Promoters Shareholding during the year.
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(iv) ShareholdingPattern oftop ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SI. Nameof the shareholders Shareholding at the Date wise IncreaselDecreasein Cumulative

No. beginning Shareholding during the year Shareholding
of the year specifying the reasonsfor during the year

increase/decrease(e.g.
aUotment/transfer/bonus/sweet
equity etc.)

No. of %of Date No. of Reason No. of 0/0 of

shares total Shares shares total

, '
sharesof sharesof
the the
company company

1 SwatiAgarwala 150000 4.39 No changeduring the year 150000 4.39

,

At the endof the year (or on 150000 4.39

thedateof separation,if
separatedduring the year)

2 BananiChakrabarti 0 • 0.00 18.03.2016 110000 Purchase 110000 3.22
At the endof the year (or on 110000 3.22
the dateof separation,if
separatedduring theyear)

3 Suman Agarwal 105000 3.07 No changeduring the year 105000 3.07

At theendof theyear (or on }'O5000 3.07
the dateof separation,if

I separatedduring theyear)
4 JasmineCommoditiesPvt. 0 0.00 04.03.2016 29170 Purchase 29170 0.85

Ltd. 25.03.2016 48588 Purchase 77758 Q.27

At theendof theyear (or on 77758 2.27
the dateof separation,if
separatedduringthe year)

5 .Aruna JayantkumarPandya 70000 2.05 No changeduring the year 70000 2.05

At the endof theyear(or on 70000 "2.05
thedateof separation,if
separatedduring the year)

6 Mohammad Arshad 63600 1.B6 No changeduring the year 63600 - l.86

Shamim
At theendof theyear(or on 63600 l.86
the dateof separation,if
separatedduring the year)

7 Frontline Dea1comm 62000 1.81 No changeduring the year 62000 1.81

Private Limited

I .At.theendof the year(or on 62000 1.81
thedateof separation,if

./

separatedduring the year)
8 SagunTrexim Limited 500 0.Q1 31.03.2016 60000 Purchase 60500 1.77

At theendof the year(or on 60500 1.77
thedateof separation,if
separatedduringthe year)

7 Vi nayKumar Agarwal 55500 1.62 No changeduring the year 55500 1.62

At theendof theyear (or on 55500 1.62
thedateof separation,if
separatedduring theyear)

8 PuneetYaduDalmia 53000 L55 No changeduring the year 53000 1.55

At theendof the year(or on 53000 1.55
thedateof separation,if
separatedduring the year)

9' SatyaNarainTulsian 50000 1.46 No changeduring the year 50000 1.46
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At the end of the year (or on 50000 1.46
the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

\0 R.K Stockholding Private 50000 1.46 No change during the year 50000 1.46

Limited

At the end of the year (or on 50000 1.46
the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

II Anil Bansal 45800 1.34 No change during the year 45800 1.34
At the end of the year (or on 45800 1.34
the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

12 Satvaiit Chakrabarti 110000 3.22 11.03.2016 I 110000 I Sale 0 0.00
At the end of the year (or on 0 0.00
the date of separation, if
separatedduring the year)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

A. Directors:

SI. Director's Name Shareholding at the Date wise Increase/Decrease in Cumulative
No. beginning ofthe year Shareholding during the year Shareholding

specifying the reasons for during the year
increase/decrease (e.g.

allotment/transfer/bonus/sweet equity
etc.)

No. of % of total Date No. of Reason No. of 0/0 of
shares shares of Shares shares total'

the shares of
company the

company
1 Ashesh Agarwal No Shareholding in the company

(Managing ~
Director)

2 Shashwat Agarwal 15326 0.45 ,
No change during the year 15326 0.45

(Director)

At the end of the 15326 0.45
year

3 Subodh Agarwal No Shareholding in the company
(Director)

4 Gaya Prasad No Shareholding in the company
Gupta

./

(Director)
5· Sanjay Tandon No Shareholding in the company

(Director)

6 Manoj Kumar No Shareholding in the company
(Director)

7 Kavita Awasthi No Shareholding in the company
(Director)

B. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

SI. Name of Key Shareholding at the Date wise Increase/Decrease in Cumulative
No. Managerial beginning of the year Shareholding during the year Shareholding

Personnel (KMP) . specifying the reasons for during the year
.increase/decrease (e.g,

- allotment/transfer/bonus/sweet equity
etc.)

No. of OAt of total Date No. of Reason No. of 0/0 of
shares shares of Shares shares total

the shares of
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I company
I I I I I the

-
company

I Ashesh Agarwal \0 Shareholdinu in the company

2 Sanjay Jain No Shareholdina in the company

3 Gunjita Kalani No Shareholding in the company

v. INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amount in Rupees)

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount Nil 4,93,20,000 Nil 4,93,20,000

ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil

iii) Interest accrued but not due • Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 4,93,20,000 Nil 4,93,20,000

Change.inIndebtednessduring the financial
year

* Addition Nil 91,50,000 Nil 91,50,000

. * Reduction ,.
Nil (4,42,20,000) Nil '(~,42,20,000)

Net Change Nil (3,50,70,000) Nil .(3,50,70,000)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount Nil 1,42,50,000 Nil 1,42,50,000

ii) Interest due but notpaid Nil Nil Nil Nil

iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 1,42,50,000 Nil 1,42,50,000.

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration tu.Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

:'.::

• (In Rupees)
SI. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MDI WTDI Total
No.

Manager Amount

Ashesh Aganval WTD Manger
.. Managing

Director
1. Gross salary

(a) Salary asper provisions 24,00,000 - - 24,00,000
contained in Section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value ofperquisitesu/s 17(2) of - - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - - -
section 17(3) ofIncome-tax Act,
1961

2. Stock Option - - - -
" Sweat Equityj. - - - -
4. Commission - - - -

- as % of profit - - - -
- others, specify ...

5. Others, Pleasespecify - - - -,

•
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Total (A) 24,00,000 - - 24,00,000

Since Profits of the Company was insufficient or inadequate,
Ceiling asper theAct henceforth, remuneration paid or payable to Mr. AsheshAgarwal

has beendetermined subject to the provision of ScheduleV
(Erstwhile Schedule XIII to the Companies Act. 1956)of the

Companies Act, 2013. Though, no remuneration hasbeenpaid or
payable by the Company to Mr. Ashesh Agarwal, Managing
Director of the Company during the financial year2015-16.

B. Remuneration to other Directors:

SI. Particulars of Name of Directors
Total

No. Remuneration Amount
Shashwat . Subodh Gaya Sanjay Manoj Kavita
Agarwal Agarwal Prasad Tandon Kumar Awasthi

Gupta
1 IndependentDirectors

• Feefor attendingboard , - - - - - - -,'

" committeemeetings
• Commission -' - - - - - -'

.,Others,pleasespecify - - - - - - -

Total (1) - - - - - - -
2 Other Non- Executive

Directors
- .

• Feefor attendingboard ' - - - - - - -
committeemeetings

• Commission - - - - - - -
• Others,pleasespecify - - - - - - -

•
Total (2) - - - - - - -
Total (B) = (1+2) - - - - - - -
TotalManagerial - - - - - - -
Remuneration
Overall ceiling asthe Act No Remuneration hasbeen paid or-payable by the company during the Financial

Year 2015-16 and whenever, it is paid, Overall ceiling will be subject to the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013.~ .

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnelother than MD/ManagerIWTD

.'f::: •

SI. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel' Total
No.

CEO CS CFO
1 Grosssalary

(a)Salaryasperprovisionscontainedin section 17(1)of - 0.90 1.20 2.10
theIncome-taxAct, 1961
(b) Value of perquisitesuls 17(2) of Income-tax Act, - - - -
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of - - -
Income-taxAct, 1961

2 StockOption - - - -
" SweatEquity -J - -
4 Commission - - - -

- as% of profit
- others,specify...

(Amt, in Lakhs)

"30
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EJ Others, pleasespecify I I I I
Total 0.90 1.20 2.10

• Since, there is no CEO in the Company,MD of the Companyhas been categorizedas KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNELunderSection203of the CompaniesAct, 2013,whoseremunerationhasbeengiven in point no.A.

** Salary of csandCFO hasbeenshownonaccrual basis, thoughpayment of salary maybejorrhcomingjinancial
year.

***There havebeenchangesin KeyManagerialPersonnel(s)dueto appointmenttsl/resignationts).

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Detailsof Authority Appeal made, if any (give
, Companies Act lDescription Penalty/Punlshment (RDINCLT/ details)

Compounding fees COURT]
imposed

A. COMPANY·
Penalty
Punishment . NONE
!Compounding

lB. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment NONE
!Compounding. " .~

\

t. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAuLT
Penalty NONE

"31
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CORPORATEGOVERNANCEREPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a report on
CorporateGovernanceis asfollows:

1. A BRIEF STATEMENT ON COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Nikki Global Finance Ltd. is committed to highest standards of Corporate Governance
arid hasalways strived to achievethe goal ofmaximization of Shareholder's worth.

Company believes that good corporate governance is essential to achieve its long-term
corporate goals and to enhance the shareholders value. Your Company believes in
functioning in a transparent manner and believes in proper accountability, auditing,
disclosure and reporting.

Company feels that the code of Corporate Governanceis an excellent tool to secure the
. corporate excellence in the country. The Company has complied with the code of

Corporate Governance as required under the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Nikki Global Finance Limited is comprised of 7 Directors.
Two areExecutive(s) and five are Independent(s).During the Financial Year 2015-16, 10
meetings of the Board were held. These meeting were held on 21-04-2015,28-05-2015,
31':07-2015,04-09-2015,08.,12-2015, 23-12-2015, 13-01-2016,23-01-2016,05-02-2016
& 25-03.=2016.

Details of Director's attendanceand Jther particulars are given below:

Director Designation No. of No. of Last No. of
Board Board AGM Member
Meetin Meeting Attendanc ships in
g held attended e Boards

(YeslNo) of other
./

public
Co.'s

AsheshAgarwal Managing Director 10 10 Yes 1
ShashwatAgarwal Director (Non Independent) 10 10 Yes 8
SubodhAgarwal Director (Independent) 10 6 No 3
Gaya PrasadGupta Director (Independent) 10 10 Yes 3
SanjayTandon Director (Independent) 10 4 Yes Nil
ManojKumar Director (Independent) 10 5 No 1
Kavita Awasthi Director (Indeperident) 10 4 No 2

.. -

Details of familiarization programmes imparted to independent directors during the year,
aredisclosedon the Company's website i.e. www.nikkiglobal.corn .
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3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has been constituted in line with the provisions of the Section 177
of the CompaniesAct, 2013 readwith Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
DIsclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The Audit Committee. of the Company

. consist ofF our Directors and all the Directors have good knowledge in finance and ..
.accountsand company law.

Composition of Audit Committee is asunder:

. COMPOSITION

Mr. GayaPrasadGupta
Mr. SubodhAgarwal
Mr. Manoj Kumar
Mr. ShashwatAgarwal

Chairman, Non Executive/IndependentDirector
Member, Non Executive/Independent Director
Member, Non Executive/Independent Director
Member, Executive Director

Meeting and attendance during the year

Members Meeting Held Meeting Attended
Mr. GayaPrasadGupta 4 4
Mr. SubodhAgarwal 4 4
Mr. Manoj Kumar 4 4
Mr. ShashwatAgarwal 4 4

Terms of Reference:

The terms of references of the Audit Committee covering the matters specified under:
Clause4.9 of the Listing Agreement / Regulation 18 readwith Part C of Schedule11to the
SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosures requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section

. 177·of the Companies Act, 2013. T1teterms of reference for the Audit Committee are -
.. broadly asunder:

I
;- (1) Oversight of the listed entity's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its

financial inforrriation to ensure that the fmancial statement is correct, sufficient and
. credible; .

(2) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of· appointment of :
auditors of the listed entity; ".

(3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors; .

(4) Reviewing, with the management,the annual financial statementsand auditor's report
thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular referenceto:
(a) Matters required to be included in the director's responsibility statement to be

included in the board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section
134of the CompaniesAct, 2013;

(b) Changes,if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasonsfor the same;
(c) Major accounting entries involving estimatesbased on the exercise of judgment

. by management;
(d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit

- findings;
(e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements rela.ing to financial

statements;

•



(f) Disclosure of any related party transactions;
(g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

(5) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before
submissionto the board for approval;

(6) Reviewing, with the management,the statementof uses/ application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposesother than those stated in the offer document / prospectus/
notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agencymonitoring the utilisation of
proceedsof a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the
hoard to take up stepsin this matter; . .

(7) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and
effectivenessof audit process;

..(8) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with
relatedparties; .

(9) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
(10) Valuation of undertakings or assetsof the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;
(11) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk managementsystems;
(12) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,

adequacyof the internal control systems;
(13) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of

the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the
.. department,reporting structure coverageand frequency of internal audit;

(14) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
(15) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into

matters where there is suspectedfraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control
systemsof amaterial nature and reporting the matter to the board;

.(16) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences,about the nature and
scopeof audit aswell aspost-audit discussionto ascertainany areaof concern;

(17) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
...debentureholders, shareholders (in caseof non-payment of declared dividends) and -

creditors; ,
(18) To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;
(19) Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessingthe qualifications,

experienceand background, etc. of the candidate;
(20) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit

committee.

4. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

StakeholdersRelationship Committee is comprises of 3 directors, its composition are as
under:

-. ~ . Composition

Mr. SubodhAgarwal
Mr. Manoj Kumar
Mr. GayaPrasadGupta

Chairman (Non-Executive/Independent Director)
Member, Non-Executive Director/Independent.Director
Member, Non-Executive Director/Independent Director
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Meeting and attendance during the year

Members Meeting Held Meetina Attended

Mr. SubodhAgarwal 4 4

Mr. Manoj Kumar 4 4

Mr. GayaPrasadGupta 4 4

- - -

The Committee has been constituted to specially look into Shareholdersgrievances such
as transfer, de-materialization related matters. The Committee has also been dealing the
power to approve transfer/transmission, issue of new or duplicate certificates, -sub-
divisions of sharesor spit of sharesand all other related matters of shares.

Therewere nocomplaints pending ason 31.03.2016.

There have been changes in designation of Company Secretary cum Compliance officer
during the year due to appointment/resignation and Ms. Gunjita Kalani is serving the
office as Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from
8th day of December,2015 and providing secretarial support to the Committee(s).

Ms. Neha Jain, Practising Company Secretary,Kanpur is conducting Reconciliation of
Share Capital Audit Report of the Company in place of Mr. Sarvesh S. Srivastava,
Practising Company Secretary,Kanpur, who ceasedto act assuch.

5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of -three (3) directors.
Composition of committee are asunder:

Composition of Committee

Mr. Manoj Kumar
Mr. SubodhAgarwal
Mr. GayaPrasadGupta

Chaihnan, Non Executive/Independent Director
Member, Non Executive/Independent Director
Member, Non Executive/Independent Director

Meeting and attendance during the year _

lMembers Meeting Held Meetinz Attended
Mr. Manoj Kumar .- 4 4
Mr. Subodh.Agarwal 4 4
Mr. GayaPrasadGupta 4 4

.. ~.
No sitting fees have been paid by the Company to any Directors for attending Board
Meetings or any Committee Meetings during the financial year 2015-16.

- -

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify personswho are qualified to
--become directors of the company and who may be appointed in senior management in

accordancewith criteria laid down by the company. It recommendsto the Board for their
appointmentasDirectors or at senior managementlevel.

The Committee had been consulted to review and apirove the annual salaries,
commission, service management and other employment conditions for the executive
directors.
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The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in line with
the requirementsof the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49IRegulation 19 readwith Part
D of Schedule II to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,2015.

The terms of reference of the Committee arebroadly asunder:

(1) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independenceof a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating

·.to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personneland other employees;
(2) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independentdirectors and the .'

board of directors; .
(3) Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;
(4) Identifying personswho are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed

in senior management in accordancewith the criteria laid down, and recommend to
the board of directors their appointment and removal.

CS) Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director,
, on the basisof the report of performance evaluation of independentdirectors.

The Company hasnot paid any remuneration to Mr. Ashesh Agarwal, Managing Director
andother executivedirectors also during the financial year 2015-16.

The. Company has not paid any remuneration such as sitting fees, commission to any
other directors (Non-executive or Independent)also during the financial year 2015-16.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER:

During the Year,there have been changes in Company Secretary cum Compliance
Officer of the Company due to appointment (s) / resignation(s), details of which hasbeen
given in Director's Report; Ms. Gunjita Kalani is serving the Company as Company
Secretary cum Compliance Officer o:f\theCompany w.e.f. 08.12.2015.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD,DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEES:

.:';..'

After taking into consideration one to one inputs received from the Directors, covering
various aspectsof the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the
Board and its Committees; Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties,
obligations and governance; pursuant to the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board
has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, theDirectors
individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Appointment and .'
RemunerationCommittees.

Independent Directors Meeting

During the year under review, the Independent Directors. met on March 29, 2016, inter
.' alia, to discuss: '

1. Evaluation of the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Board of
Directors asa Whole;

2. Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of t.ie Company, taking into account
the views of the Non executive Directors.

ob
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3. Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the
management and .the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and
reasonablyperform its duties.

All the IndependentDirectors were presentat the meeting

6. SHAREHOLDER'S MEETINGS·

Details of last three AGMs held

Year Date Venue Time

·2015-16 . 29.09.2015 Mehta Farm, Village - Chhawla, beyond BSF 11:00 A.M.
Camp, Rajokari, Najafgarh Road, New Delhi
- 110071

2014-15 29.09.2014 Mehta Farm, Village - Chhawla, beyond BSF 11:00 A.M.
Camp, Rajokari, Najafgarh Road, New Delhi
- 110071

2013-14 28.09.2013 Mehta Farm, Village -'-Chhawla, beyond BSF 11:00 A.M.
Camp, Rajokari, Najafgarh Road, New Delhi
- 110071 p

Business

Year
1. Re-appointment of Mr. AsheshAgarwal asManaging Director

of the Company for a period of 3· years commencing from
September1,2015 to August 31,2018.

2. Adoption. of new set of Articles of Association of the
Company under the CompaniesAct, 2013...

3. Alteration in Liability ClausetheMemorandum of Association
of the Company

2014-15 1. Alteration in Articles of Association of the Company

Special Resolution passedfor:
2015-16

2013-14 No Special Resolution was passedat the Annual GeneralMeeting

No Special Resolution was passedthrough Postal Ballot during the financial year 2015-
16 and even also till the date of signing of this Corporate GovernanceReport,but Special
Resolution was passedduring the financial year 2014-15, of which requisites details have
alreadybeengiven in last Corporate GovernanceReport for the financial year2014-15.

7.DISCLOSURES

(a) Basisof related partytransactions:

Disclosure.on materially significant related transactions i.e. transactions of the Company
of material nature, with its promoters, the directors or the management,their subsidiaries
or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large
- Nil.

..Further, transactions with related party(ies) has beenmade during the ordinary course of
businessand on arm's length basis.
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Policy for related party transactions IS placed on website of the Company i.e,
www.nikkiglobal.com.

(b) Whistle Blower Policy:

The Companybelievesin the conductof the affairs of its variousconstituentsin a fair
and transparentmanner,by adoptingthe higheststandardof professionalism,honesty,
integrity and ethical behaviour and open communication.The Companyhas Whistle
Blower Policy under which the employeesare free to report instancesof unethical
behaviour,violation of laws andregulationsandthe codeof conductor policies of the
Company.The employeescan approachthe same directly to Chairman of Audit
Committee.Duringthe year underreview,no employeewas deniedaccessto the Audit
Committee.

(c) Risk Management:

The Companyhas a well definedrisk managementframework in place, further it has
establishedproceduresto periodically place beforethe Board, the risk assessmentand
minimizationproceduresbeing followed andthe stepsweretakenby it to mitigatethese
risks.

(d) There is no inter-se relationships between the Directors of the Company except
Mr. ShashwatAgarwal and Mr. AsheshAgarwal are brothers.

(e)Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: .

Therehave.notbeenanysignificantchangesin accountingpoliciesduringtheyear.

(f) Compliance by the Company:

. .

There areno instancesof non-compliancesby theCompanyon anymattersrelatedto the -
capitalmarket,nor haveany penalty/stricturesbeenimposedby theStock Exchangesor
SEBI or anyotherstatutoryauthorityon anymatterrelatingto capitalmarketduringthe
FinancialYearendedon March 31,2016.

..(8) MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The quarterlyresultsarepublishedin EnglishandHindi Newspapers(HindustanTimes
Mint arid.Hari Bhoomi), and are also displayed on the Company's website i.e,
www.nikkiglobal.com. Half yearly results are not mandatorily applicableon the
Companyunder Listing Agreement and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulations,2015. .

WhethertheManagementDiscussionandAnalysissectionis partof theAnnualreportor
not:Yes

(9) GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION :

(a) Company Registration Details:

-
The CompanyIdentity Number (CIN) allotted to the Companyby the Ministry of

..CorporateAffairs (MCA) is L65999DL1986PLC024493.
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(b) Annual General Meeting:

(Day, Date, Time and Venue)
Friday, September30,2016 at 3:30 p.m.
Mehta Farm, Village Chhaw1a,beyond BSFCamp, Rajkhari, Nazabgarh Road, New

..Delhi - 110071

(c) Financial Year:

. Financial Year - April 1 to Match 31

(d) Book Closure Date:

September23, 2016 (Friday) to September 30, 2016 (Friday) (both days inclusive). No
Dividend is being declared at ensuingAGM. .

(e) Listing:

Equity Sharesof the Company areactively listed on BSE.
Scrip Code: 531272
ISIN:. INE652DOI014

(i) Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.
Phirize JeejeephoyTowers,
Dalal Stret, Mumbai - 400001

(f)Market Price Data:

Monthly Open, High, Low and Close price and the trading volumes on BSE of equity
sharestile Company are hereunder:

Month Open Price High Price. Low Close No. of
Price Price Shares

Jan-15 107.95 108.00 57;50 70.60 42179

Feb-15 74.00 78.70 59.25 . 69.90 ·10181

Mar-15 70.95 71.00 47.20 50.85 17390
Apr-15 ··53.95 60.00 36.00 37.00 18196

May-15 39.80 ··39-.90 27.10 30.05 25012
Jun-I5 29.00 34.60 20.15 33.00 20826

JuJ-15 34.00 41.60 29.00 32.00 46836 .

Aug-15. 32.00 39.70 22.65 25.00 8072
Sep-15 22.50 33.60 20.20 30.35 6685
.oa-is 31.85 31.85 26.10 27.20 2330

Nov-15 27.00· 27.00 22.70 ·22.70 722
Dec:"15 22.25 22.30 18.25 18.25 21375

Jan-16 17.90 18.60 17.30 - 17.60 1230
Feb.:16 17_25 17.25 16.95 . 17.25 29220

Mar-16. 16.95 17.10 16.95 17.10 48700

•
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(g) Performance of the Company's Stock Price vis-a-vis BSE SENSEX:

,
l
1·····

1,
!

(h) Registrar and Transfer Agents:

Members/Shareholders are requested to correspond with the Company's Registrar and
Transfer Agent quoting their Folio NoJDP ID & Client ID at the following address:

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
D-1531A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-I,~NewDelhi - 110020
PhoneNos; '- 011-26812682-83/6473~681-88,Fax No. - 011-26292681
E-mail: admin@skylinerta.com

(i) Share Transfer System:

Securities lodged for transfers areprocessedand security certificates are returned within a
period of fifteen days from the date of its receipt, subject to all documents being valid
andcomplete in all respects. The -Board of Directors has delegated the authority for
approving transfer, transmission etc. of the Company's Securities to Company Secretary

..of the Company.The Company obtains a certificate from Company Secretary in practice
on half yearly basis certifying that all the compliances with transfer formalities, as
required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have been complied with and files it with Stock
Exchange(s).

(j}Shareholding Pattern as on March 31,2016:

Category
(A) Promoters Holding

Individuals
Bodies Corporate

Sub-Total (A)

No: of Shares % of Holding

266924
o

266924

7.81
0.00
7.81
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(B) Non Promoters Holding
(1) Central Govt. / StateGovt. / Presidentof 1200 0.04

India
Sub-Total (B) (1)- 1200 0.04

(2) Non-Institutions

• Bodies Corporate 570857 16.68 -

• Individuals 2293586 67.07

• Non Resident Indians 965 0.03

• HUF 286168 8.37

Sub-Total (B) (2) 3151576 92.15.
Sub-Total (B) 3152776 92.19

--
Grand Total (A+B) 3419700 100.00

Distribution Schedule of Equity Shareholder as on March 31, 2016:

.Shareor Debenture Number of % to Total Share or % to Total
-holding Nominal Shareholders Numbers -Debenture Amount

Value holding Amount
(Rs.) (Rs.)

1 2 3 4 .~ 5

Up To 5,000 730 56.2 1057810 3.09
5001 To 10,000 165 12.7 1493840 4.37

10001To 20,000 140 10.78 2311900 6.76
20001 To 30,000 53 4.08 1470550 4.3

30001 To 40,000 57 4.39 2011780 5.88
40001To 50,000 37 2.85 1807820 5.29

50001 To 1,00,000 67 5.16 5099860 14.91
1,00,000and Above 50 3.85 18943440 55.4 -

.;.Total 1299 100 34197000 100

•(~) Dematerialization of Equity Shares and its Liquity:

The Company has tie-ups with NSDLand CDSL, the Members can dematerialize their
shares by opening accounts with Participants of NSDL and CDSL and can enjoy its

.Tiquity. -

(I) The Company has not issuedany GDRs/ADRs.

(m) BrancheslPlants:

The Companyhas no branch/ Plant.

(n) Payment of Listing Fees:

Annual Listing Feesfor the year 2016-17 hasbeenpaid by the Companyto BSE.

(o) Payment of Depository Fees:

Annual Custody/Issuer Fess forthe year 2016-17 has been paid by the Company to
Depositories (NSDL & CDSL:.

•
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(p) E-mail ID of Grievance Redressal Division:

ngfltd@rediffmail.com, investors@nikkiglobal.com

(q) Address for correspondence:

For any assistance regarding share transfer and transmission, change of address, non --
receipt of share certificates, demat and other matters, please write to our Registrar and
ShareTransfer Agent of the Company at addressmentioned at (f) above. For any query
on the Annual Report and foranycomplaints or suggestions,pleasewrite to or contact:

Ms. Gunjita Kalani
CompanySecretary cum Compliance Officer
Nikki Global Finance Limited
1-9,LGF, Lajpat Nagar-l , New Delhi -110024
TeleFax: 011-64000323, Mobile No. 09871005526
E-mail: ngfltd@rediffmail.com.investors@nikkiglobal.com
Website: www.nikkiglobal.com

(10) COMPLIANCE WITH nISCRETAIONARY REQUIREMENTS AS })ER
REGULATION 27(1) OF SEBl (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND nISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015:

The Company has adopted following discretionary requirements of Regulations 27(1) of
SEB1(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015-

(a) Audit Qualifications: The Company is in regime of the un-audited financial
statements.

(b) Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor reports directly to Audit
• Committee of the Company.

(11) CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION:

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer ofthe Company give annual Compliance
Certificate in accordancewith Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of SEB1
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations; 2015/Clause 49 of
Listing Agreement withStock Exchangers). The annual compliance certificate givenby :
theChaimian and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer is attached in Annual
report.

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

I, AsheshAgarwal, Managing Director of the Company, hereby declare that, all the
members of the Board and-the Senior Management personnel have confirmed their
compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year endedMarch 31, 2016

Place:New Delhi
Date: 25.082016

F;N:it~:3red
/1)lV l Managing Director

DIN:02319026
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
(pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015)

In terms of Regulation 17(8) of SEBl (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Managing Director and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company hascertified to the Board that:

(a) We.have reviewed the financial statementsand the cash flow statement for the year
.endedMarch 31, 2016 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material factor contain any statementsthatmight be misleading. ~

(ii) these statementstogether present.a true and fair view of the Company's affairs
and are in compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws
and regulations.· ~ ~

..(b) To the best of our knowledge andbelief, no transactionsentered into by the Company
during the year are fraudulent>,illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control for
financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control
systemsof the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to
the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation .of such
internal controls, if any; of which they are aware and stepshave been takent~ rectify
thesedeficiencies. .

(d) We have indicated to the auditors andthe audit committee that:

(i) there has not been any significant change in internal control over financial
reporting during the year;

(ii) there has not been any significant changesin the accounting policies during the
year requiring. disclosure in the notesto the financial statements;

(ii) We are not aware' of any instances during the year of significant fraud with
involvement therin of the managementor an employee having a significant role
in the Company's internal control systemover financial reporting.

For Nikki Global Finance Limited

Place:New Delhi
Date: 25.08.2016

J-Llvi)Y ~Shesh garwal
Managing Director

~DIN:02319026

~~

(Chief Financial Officer)
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Management Discussion & Analysis
ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

. The economic conditions in the country in the current fiscal have been challenging with
inflation being the major factor driving economic policy. Policy formulation has become
more complicated and Indian rupee has tended to remain weak against major
international currencies. There was overall slowdown in the economy of the country.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ..

Due to overall slowdown in the economy of country, the company incurred loss of Rs.
7,50,228.00 during the year under review and it is expected that the company will
perform better in coming years.

OPPORTUNITIES AND STRENGTHS

The Company is searching for new avenues.Your company continues to focus on the
diversification its business activities. Although business opportunities are available,
additional resourcescontinues to be constraint. '

.BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The company has good recognition among its shareholders spread throughout country.
The company has evolved new vision and focus. The company has a strategy to diversify ..
its businessactivities in coming years.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

.TheCapital market industry in which-your Company is operating is subject to extensive _
regulation. The Company evaluatesthe technological obsolescenceand the associated

. risk and makes investment accordingly

IINTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has satisfactory internal control system. The Company has an adequate
systemof internal controls' to ensureaccuracy of accounting records, compliance with all
laws & regulations and compliance with all rules, procedures& guidelines prescribed by
the management.An internal audit is carried out by eminent professional. An internal
team of inspection also regularly visits office of the Company for ensuring regulatory
compliance. Postaudit reviews are also carried out to ensure follow up on the.
observationsmade. .

HUMAN CAPITAL

The company recognizes that its successis deeply embeddedin the successof the human
resources.The company has significantly scaled up its activities through investment in
people and infrastructure. The company nurtures its employeesthrough healthy working
atmosphere th:rt .ensures equal opportunity for growth and challenge to all the equal
opportunity for growth and challengeto all employees.The company believes in creating

•



business leaders by employing best talent in the industry, providing opportunities,
empowermentby delegations, training andtaking care of their growth.

DISCLOSURES

During the year, the Company has not entered into any transactions of material nature
with its promoters, the directors or themanagement, relatives etc. that may have potential

conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

-All the transactionswith related party(ies) aremade in ordinary course of businessand on

arm's length basis. -

CAUTIONERY STATEMENT

The statementsmade in this report describethe company's objectivesand projections that
may be forward looking statement"within the meaning of applicable laws andregulations.
The actual result might differ materially from those expressedor implied depending on

__the economic conditions, government policies and other incidental factors-which are
_beyond the control of the company. The company is not under any obligation to publicly

amend,modify or revise any forward looking statementson the basis of any subsequent
developments,information or events. 1-:> -

•

•
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i~ __ iJ AGARWAL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
124, Z-I, HEMANT VIHAR, BARRA -2, KANPUR - 208027

Tel: (0) +919235444005 (M) 09415044443
E-mail:~julujagarwal@gmail.com.julujagarwal@rediffmail.com

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Nikki Global Finance
Limited (the Company), for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016, as stipulated in Chapter
IV of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to
the Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchange(s).

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to proceduresand implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
the above-mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

Place: -NEW DELHI
Date: - 27.05.2016

.. /
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L .~J AGARWAL AND ASSOCIATES

CHARTEREDACCOUNTANT

124,Z-1, HEMANT VIHAR, BARRA -2 KANPUR- 208027
Tel: (0) +919235444005 (M) 9415044443

E-Mail: julujagarwal@rediffmail.com.julujagarwal@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED
r'the Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, theStatement of Profit
and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the 'year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentati'4n of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included/ in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
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control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016, and its Profit&Loss and its Cash
Flow for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order''), as amended,

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the

Act, we give in the "AnnexureA." a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4

of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) ofthe Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of accoont as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with

by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d, in our opinion, the atoreseld flnandal statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2016

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March

31,2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

. Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

"Annexure B".
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For and on behalf of

I~
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"Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement' of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2016:

1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
business. Pursuantto the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between
the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(c) The does not own any immovable properties.

2) (a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals.

b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to
books records which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not
material.

3) The Company has granted unsecured loans, companies, firms, Limited Liabil!ty
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of
the Act.

4) In our opinion and accordlnqsto the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bankof India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

6) As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the
activities carried on by the company.

7) In respect of statutory dues:
(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing' undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Ta'5, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues. with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
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payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2016 for a period of
more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax
outstanding on account of any dispute.

8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not
taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the government and has not
issued any debentures.

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given

by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or

further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the

provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not

commented upon. ',/

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Companies Act; :

-
12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause

4 (xii) of the Order are not applidlble to the Company.

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the

,Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
, by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under
review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

•



15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

16) The company is registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For and on behalf of

~~~A.J AGARWAL
Partner
Mem No: 071738

Place: NEW DELHI
Date: 27.05.2016

•
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"Annexure B" to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial
Statements of NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LTD Company limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NIKKI GLOBAL-
FINANCE LTD Company Limited("the Company'') as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by thelnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note'') and
the StandaFds on Auditing, issued by lCAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the ext~nt applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over-financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on. the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

•



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets Of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and. directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting,

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or-
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal flnandal
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia".

For and on behalf of

~~~'IJ'L.I AGARWAL
Partner
Mem No: 071738

Place: NEW DELHI
Date: 27.05.2016
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NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED

1-9, LGF, LAJPAT NAGAR-1, NEW DELHI, -110024
CIN : L65999DL 1986PLC024493

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31/03/2016

Balance Sheet as at Note 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 2.1 3,41,97,000.00 3,41,97,000.00
Reserves and surplus 2.2 (1,75,62,750.00) (1,31,62,522.00)
Money received against share warrants - -

1,66,34,250.00 2,10,34,478.00

Share application money pending allotment - -

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 2.3 1,42,50,000.00 4,93,20,000.00
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2.4 21,606.00 21,606.00
Other Long term liabilities 2.5 8,06,00,759.00 3,75,05,759.00
Long-term provisions - -

• 9,48,72,365.00 8,68,47,365.00

Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings - -
Trade payables - -
Other current liabilities - -
Short-term provisions 2.6 1,00,759.00 p 95,474.00

1,00,759.00 95,474.00

TOTAL 11,16,07,374.00 10,79,77,317.00

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 2.7 18,101.00 18,101.00
Intangible assets - -
Capital work-in-progress - -
Intangible assets under development - -

18,101.00 18,101.00
Non-current investments 2.8 75,01,100.00 75,01,100.00
Deferred tax assets (net) - -
Long-term loans and advances • 2.9 8,01,01,158.00 6,98,21,639.00
Other non-current assets - -

8,76,20,359.00 7,73,40,840.00

Current assets
Current investments - -
Inventories 3.0 12,65,998.00 10,44,454.00
Trade receivables 3.1 2,18,03,582.00 2,84,85,694.00
Cash and cash equivalents 3.2 7,61,538.00 9,40,922.00
Short-term loans and advances 0/ - -
Other current assets 3.3 1,55,897.00 1,65,407.00

2,39,87,015.00 3,06,36,477.00

TOTAL 11,16,07,374.00 10,79,77,317.00

In '

For NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED

~~~~AGARWAL
~ ER)

M. NO. : 071738

J)A~Al
(MANAGING DIRECTOR)

~6
(DIRECTOR)

Place
Date

NEW DELHI
27105/2016

(DIN: 02319026) (DIN: 00335302)

For Nikki Global Fi~anceLtd.~ FOR NIKKl GLOBAL FINANCE LlMITEO

S:s>sf:i ~ J ~»'
Chief Financial Officer CO~PANYSECRETARV
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NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED
1-9, LGF, LAJPAT NAGAR-1, NEW DELHI, -110024

CIN : L65999DL 1986PLC024493
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31/03/2016

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Note 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Revenue from operations 3.4 2,97,25,895.00 2,34,89,359.00
Other income 3.5 7,12,430.00 16,895.00
"':"~~: Revenue 3,04,38,325.00 2,35,06,254.00

Expenses
Purchases of Stock-in- Trade 3.6 2,99,14,508.00 2,41,93,740.00
Changes in inventories of finished goods 3.7 (2,21,544.00) (7,98,464.00)
work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Employee benefits expense 3.8 5,52,280.00 3,64,200.00
Finance costs 3.9 1,458.00 222.00
Depreciation and amortization expense 4.0 0.00 9,291.00
Other expenses 4.1 8,81,851.00 28,70,323.00
Total expenses 3,11,88,553.00 2,66,39,312.00

Profit before tax • (7,50,228.00) (31,33,058.00)
Tax expense: 4.2

Current tax 0.00 0.00
Deferred tax 0.00 0.00

Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (7,50,228.00) (31,33,058.00)
Tax expense of discontinuing operations 0.00 0.00
Profitl(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) 0.00 f' 0.00
Profit (Loss) for the period (7,50,228.00) (31,33,058.00)
Earnings per equity share: 4.3

Basic (0.26) (0.92)
Diluted (0.26) (0.92)

In '

For NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED

ASHESH AGARWAL
(MANAGING DIRECTOR)

(DIN: 02319026)

~~
(DIRECTOR)

(DIN: 00335302)

•

. Place
Date

NEW DELHI
27105/2016 For.Nikki Global Finance Ltd. FOR NIKKl GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED

. . ", -..--t ' 0\-0- •

-S=;~ ~J "'-~

Chief Financial Officer COMPANY SECRETARY

•



NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH'31, 2016

2.1 Share Capital
In '

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
A.uthorised

4000000 (4000000) Equity Shares EQUITY of' 10/- Par Value 4,00,00,000.00 4,00,00,000.00
4,00,00,000.00 4,00,00,000.00

Issued
3419700 (3419700) Equity Shares EQUITY of' 10/- Par Value 3,41,97,000.00 3,41,97,000.00

3,41,97,000,00 3,41,97,000.00
Subscribed

3419700 (3419700) Equity Shares EQU ITY of ' 101- Par Value 3,41,97,000.00 3,41,97,000.00
3,41,97,000.00 3,41,97,000.00

Paidup
3419700 (3419700) Equity Shares EQUITY of ' 101- Par Value Fully 3,41,97,000.00 3,41,97,000.00
Paidup

3,41,97,000,00 3,41,97,000.00

31103/2016 % Held
7.35251498

Reconciliation

31/03/2015 % Held

7.35 251498

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Number of Share Amount Number of Share Amount

Number of shares at the beginning 3419700 34197000 0 0
Add: Issue 0 0 0 0
Less: Bought Back 0 0 0 0
Others 0 0 0 0
Number of shares at the end 3419700 34197000 0 34197000

2.2 Reserve and Surplus
In '

Particular - 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

Hedging Reserve - Opening , 1,08,000.00 1,08,000.00
Addition 0.00 0.00
Deduction 0.00 .0.00

1,08,000.00 1,08,000.00

Profit and Loss Opening (1,32,70,522.00) (1,01,37,464.00)
Amount Transferred From Statement of P&L (7,50,228.00) (31,33,058.00)
Appropriation and Allocation

. Others 36,50,000.00 0.00

./ (36,50,000.00) (O.OO)
(1,76,70,750.00) (1,32,70,522.00)

(1,75,62,750.00 (1,31,62,522.00)

2..3 Long Term Borrowings
In '

31/03/2016 31/03/2015.Particular

Others
Unsecured

P SAJI TEXTILES LIMITED
BIG BROKER HOUSE STOCK LTO
RICH UOYOG NElWORK LTO
CITYON INFRASTRUCTURE

51,00,000.00
91,50,000.00

0.00
0.00

51,00,000.00
0.00

4,31,20,000.00
11,00,000.00

FQr Nikki Global Finance Limite~

}~~
51

•

1,42,50,000.00 4,93,20,000.DCI

For Nikki Global Finance Ltd.

~~ector



.2;4 Deferred Taxes

Particular 31/03/2016 3110312015
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation 21,606.00 21,606.00
21,606.00 21,606.00

In '

2.5 Other LongTenn Liabilities

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Trade Payables

. others
SHASHWAT AGARWAL 3,73,91,499.00 3,73,91,499.00
SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES P LTD. 89,260.00 1,14,260.00
CHEQUE ISSUED BUT NOT PRESENTED 4,31,20,000.00 0.00

8,06,00,759.00 3,75,05,759.00

In '

2.6 ShortTenn Provisions

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Others

J AGARWAL & ASSOCIATES 49,759.00 49,634.00
SALARY PAYABLE 51,000.00 o.oo
NIRBHRANT AGARWAL 0.00 45,840.00

1,00,759.00 " 95,474.00

In '

ForNikki, Financeum

f;t~Ma~ctor

For Nikki GlO~ Ltd.

Director

5B
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2.7 Tangible assets

I Particular Gross Depreciation Impairment Net
Opening Addltl Deductlo Closing Openi During Deductio Other Closing Openi During Reve Closin Closing Opening

on n ng Period n Adj. ng Period rsal 9
EQuipments 18,101.00 18,101.00 18,101.00 18,101.00
Grand Total 18,101.00 0.00 0.00 18,101.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,101.00 18,101.00
Previous 27,392.00 0.00 0.00 27,392.00 0.00 9,291.00 0.00 0.00 9,291.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,101.00 27,392.00

In •

for Nikki Global Finance Ltd.

~~r

59
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2.8 Non-current investments
In '

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Investments in Equity Instruments 75,00,100.00 75,00,100.00
Other non-current investments 1,000.00 1,000.00

75,01,100.00 75,01,100.00

2.9 Long-term loans and advances
In '

Particular 31103/2016 31103/2015
Loans and advances to others

Unsecured, considered good
ABHINAV TOSHNIWAL 3,75,000.00 3,75,000.00
AMBER KANKANE 24,00,000.00 24,00,000.00
CITYON NANO TECHNOLOGY PVT LTO 0.00 31,00,000.00
DINESH KUMAR PAHUJA 3,75,000.00 3,75,000.00
H.M.S. INTERNATIONAL 50,00,000.00 0.00
HARVIR SINGH 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00
HEMA PAHUJA • 7,50,000.00 7,50,000.00
HORIZON PORTFOLIO LTD. 0.0.0 35,00,000.00
IMMORTAL HEALTH PVT. LTD. (MISSION) 40,00,000.00 40,00,000.00
KAVITA AGARWAL 0.00 1,50,000.00
KPL PACKGING PVT. LTD. 25,00,000.00 25,00,000.00
KSM EXPORTS LIMITED 25,00,000.00 25,00,000.00
MANDEEP SINGH SANDHU 0.00 -tJ- 41,00,000.00
MEHNDIPUR BALlJA IMPEX P. LTD 0.00 481.00
MOHD. SAJID 25,00,000.00 0.00
MOHD. TAHIR 25,00,000.00 0.00
NANDITA SHAUNIK 3,00,000.00 0.00
NARAIN DASS 36,00,000.00 36,00,000.00
P.N.G. &CO. 4,00,000.00 0.00
RAJ KISHORE AGARWAL 35,00,000.00 0.00
RAJEEV TOSHNIWAL 7,50,000.00 7,50,000.00
RUSTAM FOODS PRIVATE LIMITED 85,00,000.00 0.00
SAGAR KRISHI YANTRA PVT. LTD. 4,80,000.00 5,09,000.00
SANGEETAAGARWAL 0.00 9,50,000.00
SKYLINE INFRA HEGHITS P. LTD. 1,00,00,000.00 1,00,00,000.00
STAR ENTERP,RISES 0.00 6,00,000.00
VASUNDHRA CAPITAL & SECURITIES LTD. 31,71,158.00 31,71,158.00
WM BLUE CHIP INVESTMENT SERVICES PVT. ~TD. 2,55,00,000.00 2,55,60,000.00

8,01,01,158.00 6,98,41,639.00

3.0 Inventories
In '

Particular 31103/2016 31/03/2015
Others

Other
CLOSING STOCK- QUOTED SHARES

./

12,65,998.00 10,44,454.00
12,65,998.00 10,44,454.00

3.1 Trade receivables
In'

Particular 31/031201531/03/2016
Trade Receivable

Secured,_considered good
Within Six Months

BAJAJ CAPITAL
BIG BROKER SALES & PURCHASE AlC
CHEQUE RECEIVED BUT NOT DEPOSITED
CITYON SYSTEMS INDIA LTD.
HORIZONPORTFOLIO LTO .(SALES & PURCHASEAlC)
KALI COMMODITIES PVT LTO
SHOBHAGYACAPITAL OPTIONS. LTD
SHREE MAH MI COMMODITIES
ZEAL ADV TISING PVT. LTD.

10,553.00 10,553.00
1,25,66,400.00 1,25,66,400.00

1,00,000.00 0.00
44,00,000.00 84,00,000.00

3,72,136.00 16,73,950.00
0.00 14,38,135.00

50,000.00 50,000.00
43,04,493.00 43,04,493.00

0.00 42,163.00
2,18,03,582.00 2,84,85,694.00

For Nikki Global Finance Ltd.

~ .

•



3:2 Cash and cash equivalents

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Cash in Hand 6,11,599.00 7,59,745.00
Balances With Banks

Balance With Oher Banks
Current Account

BANK OF INDIA 47,439.00 54,865.00
HDFC BANK LTO 57,357.00 91,312.00
HDFC BANK NEW AlC 34,773.00 35,000.00
SBI 10,370.00 0.00

7,61,538.00 9,40,922.DO

In '

3.3 Other current assets
In '

Farticular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
T.D.S. AY. 2012-13 1,55,897.00 1,55,897.00
T.D.S. AY. 2011-12 0.00 450.00
TDS AY.06-07 0.00 9,060.00

1,55,897.00 1,65,407.DO

3.4 Revenue from operations

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Sale of Products

Other Goods
SALES 2,95,33,471.00 " 2,34,89,359.00

Other Operating Revenues
MTOM 1,92,424.00 0.00

2,97,25,895.00 2,34,89,359.00

In '

3.5 Other income

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Interest 0.00 14,770.00
Dividend

DIVIDEND 2,429.00 2,125.00
Miscellaneous

SALES CONSULTANCY CHARGES 7,10,000.00 0.00
.BALANCE WRITTt::N OFF 1.00 0.00

•. 7,12,430.00 16,895.00

In '

3.8 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
In '

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Stock in Trade

PURCHASES 2,99,74,508.00 2,41,93,740.00
2,99,74,508.00 2,41,93,740.00

3;7 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-In-progress and Stock-in-Trade
In '

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Opening

Other 10,44,454.00 2,45,990.00
10,44,454.00 2,45,990.00

Closing
Other 12,65,998.00 10,44,454.00

12,65,998.00 10,44,454.00
IncreaselDecrease

Other (2.21,544.00\ (7,98,464.00)
(2,21,544.00) (7,98,464.001

Details of Chan es in Invento
Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Other

OCK

...... -. -.. -.-.. .-----.



3:8 Employee benefits expense

Particular 31/03/2016 3110312015
Salary, Wages & Bonus

SALARIES 5,52,280.00 3,64,200.00
5,52,280.00 3,64,200.00

In '

3.9 Finance costs

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Interest Expenses

Bank Charges
BANK CHARGES 1,458.00 222.00

1,458.00 222.00

In '

4.0 Depreciation and amortisation expense
In '

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Depreciation & Amortisation .

Depreciation Tangible Assets 0.00 9,291.00
0.00 9,291.00

4.1 Other expenses

Particular 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

Administrative and General Expenses
Telephone Postage

Telephone Expenses 7,910.00 1,460.00
Postage Expenses 11,736.00 10,722.00

Printing Stationery
Printing 6,920.00 4,580.00

Auditors Remuneration
Audit Fees 28,625.00 28,500.00 .

- Repairs Maintenance Expenses
Others 11,845.00 1,950.00

Travelling Conveyance
TRAVELLING EXP. 11,695.00 5,830.00

Legal and Professional Charges ~
LISTING FEES (BSE) • 2,24,720.00 1,12,360.00
LISTING FEES (CDSL) 5,618.00 12,359.00
CERTIFICATION FEES 7,080.00 7,017.00
LISTING FEES (NSDL) 0.00 6,741.00

Vehicle Running Expenses 13,978.00 17,650.00
Selling Distribution Expenses

Advertising Promotional Expenses
ADVERTISEMENT EXP 2,34,406.00 1,72,501.00

Other Expenses
COMPUTER EXP. -/

37,090.00 20,300.00
, .D MAT CHARGES 3,506.00 3,453.00
.- OFFICE EXP 23,552.00 7,500.00

ROC EXP 22,200.00 15,600.00
A G M EXPENSES 30,100.00 28,950.00
DEPOSITARY SERVICE CHARES 26,310.00 0.00
INCOME TAX 9,510.00 0.00
LEGALEXP. 15,000.00 0.00
MiSe. EXP. 50.00 0.00
RENT AlC 1,50,000.00 0.00
SHARE TRANSFER AGENT FEES 0.00 1,77,563.00
INTERNET EXP. 0.00 984.00
MTOM 0.00 22,34,303.00 .

8,81,851.00 28,70,323.()0

In '

4.2 Tax expense

Jr 1 .. 1 ;iOba Financeum1it

/~ anaging [)if; or
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·4~3Earnings per equity share

Particular 31/03/2016 3110312015
Earnings Per Equity Share

Basic
Basic EPS Before Extra Ordinary Item (0.26) (0.92)
Extra Ordinary Item Adjustment 0.00 0.00

Diluted
Diluited EPS Before Extra Ordinary Item (0.26) (0.92)
Extra Ordinary Item Adjustment 0.00 0.00

Number of Shares used in computing EPS
Basic . 3419700 3419700
Diluted 3419700 3419700

Weighted Average Number of shares
Number of Shares for basic EPS calculation
Number of shares for dilutive calculation 34,19,700.00 34,19,700.00

In '

In terms of our attached report of even date
F!)r J AGARWAL AND ASSOCIATES For NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED

ASHESH AGARWAL
(MANAGING DIRECTOR)

(DIN: 02319026)

~~
(DiRECTOR)

(DIN: 00335302)

Place NEW DELHI
Date 27/05/2016

-6-3
•
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(AS ON 31sT MARCH, 2016)

Significant Accounting Policies for the period ended March, 2016.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES:

(a) System of Accounting and Revenue Recognition

(i) Accounts are prepared under historical cost convention in accordance with applicable mandatory
Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Income on non-performing assets is recognized in accordance with the provisions of Prudential
Norms for Income Recognition prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India and is accounted for in
the year of realization.

(iii) Profit I (Losses) on sale of investments are recognized on trade date on First in First out basis.

(iv) Dividend on shares is accounted for as and when received.

(v) Loans and advances are stated net of provisions for non-performing advances. Balances of
various parties are subject to confirmations.

(vi) Other Income and expenses are accounted for on accrual basis.

(vii) The inventories of shares & securities have been valued at market value as at 31st March,2016

(b) Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

(c) Depreciation
The depreciation has been provided on WDV method at the rates. provided in Schedule 11 of the
Companies Act, 2013 on pro-rata basis.

(d) Investments

(i) The investments is categorized into 'Non- Current'.

(ii) Investments are valued at cost. Provision fo'diminution in the value of investment, if any, is made
if the Decline in value is of permanent nature.

2. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Accounts and not provided for
: NIL'
(Previous Year: NIL)

(b) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts: NIL
(Previous Year: NIL)

(c Uncalled liability on partly paid investments: NIL
(Previous Year: NIL)

3. Special reserve represents, the reserve created in accordance with the provisions of section 4S-IC
Of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended by the Reserve Bank of India (Amendment)
Act, 1997.

4. The company has not entered into any lease agreement after 31.03.1999, therefore, provision of
Accounting standard-19 on 'Lease' are not applicable.

5. To the extent information available, there were no outstanding dues towards small scale or
ancillary undertaking as on 31.03.2016.

FQrN~kkiGlobalFina~

;1ft'A C4Director

b4

ro. Nikki Global ~nance Ltd.

. ~~r
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party Disclosures" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Related party where significant influence exists:

Party Relationship Transaction
Amount in

Rs.

Horizon Portfolio Ltd.
Entity in which key Management Personnel

Purchase & Sale of Securities ~,81,72,246.30can exercise slonlficant control

Star Enterprises
Entity in which key Management Personnel

Loan amount received back 6,00,000.00
Can exercise sionificant control

Rich Udyog Network Ltd
Entity in which key Management Personnel

Repayment of Loan 4,31,20,000.00
Can exercise slaniflcant control

8. Amount outstanding as on 31st March. 2016:

(i) Key Management Personnel

(ii) Others Related Parties

3,73,91,499.00 Cr.

0.00

3,73,91,499.00 Cr.

45,840.00 Cr.

9. An amount of Rs. 4, 31, 20,000.00 is shown under the head CHEQUES ISSUED BUT NOT PRESENTED
TO BANK are issued to RICH UDYOG NETWORK LTD. The cheques are still outstanding as on date of
signing of the final a/cs.

"fF

10. The particulars as required in terms of Paragraph 9BB of Non-Banking Financial Companies
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions 1998 given in Schedule I-(i) is not appended
hereto.

11. Keeping in view the current year losses of the company, net deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognized in accordance with Accounting Standard AS.:.22-uAccounting for taxes on income" issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India".

12. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and Provident Fund Act, 1952 are not presently applicable to the
Company. The company does not have a policy of encashment of unavailed leaves.

13. Earnings in Foreign Currency: NIL • (Previous Year: Rs. NIL)

(Previous Year: Rs. NIL-)14. Expenses in Foreign Currency: NIL

15. The company has identified that there is no impairment of assets and as such no provision is
required for the same in terms of Accounting Standard 28 issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

16. Figures have been rounded off to the near~st rupees.

17. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary.

DATE : 27/05/2016
PLACE: NEW DELHI

•



FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31.03.2016
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2016

For the year Ended

31, March 2016

Amount (Rs.)

For the year Ended

31, March 2015

Amount (Rs.)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net Profit/(Loss) as per Profit & Loss A/c Before Tax

Adjustments for:

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES

(750,228.00) (3,133,058.00)

0.00 9291.00
150000.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
3500000.00 0.00

(4,400,228.00) (3,123,767.00)

6,470,078.00 2,735,906.00

5,285.00 (24,458.00)

2,075,135.00 (412,319.00)

Depreciation

PIP Expenses

Income Tax

Other Adjustments

_'Operation profit before working capital changes

Change in Current Asset

Change in Current Liabilities

Cash ~Iows from investing activities

Purchase of Investment

Purchase of fixed Assets

Sale of fixed Assets

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances (10,279,519.00) (950,000.00)

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTlVITES (10,279,519.00) (950,000.00)

Cash flows from Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of Share Capital

Increase/(Decrease) in Unsecured Loans & Non current liabilities
. ~ 8,025,000.00 1,174,012.00

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES 8,025,000.00 1,174,012.00

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (179,384.00) (188,307.00)

Cash and Cash equivalents beginning of year 940,922.00 1,129,229.00

Cash and Cash equivalents at end of year 761,538.00 940,922.00

Notes:1

Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow

Notes:2

This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date prepared under the indirect method,setout in AS-3 issued by the Institute

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

ASHESH AGARWAL

(MANAGING DIRECTOR)

DIN:02319026

G.~~
(DIRECTOR)

DIN:00335302

FOR NIKKl GLOBALfiNANCE LlMITEQ

~;~.
CCMPANYSECRETARY

Place: New Delhi

Dlte : 27/05/2016
For NikkiGl~balFinance ~.

S<9:sr=i ~:- ,
Chief Financial Officer
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PROXY FORM
{Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act,2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014}

30TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - SEPTEMBER 30,2016

NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED·
Regd. Office: 1-9,LOF, Lajpat Nagar-LNew Delhi -110024

CIN: L65999DL1986PLC024493

Name of the member(s)

•

RegisteredAddress

E-mail ID

Folio No/CliehtID

DPID ,
-

I / We, being the member(s) of the abovenamed Company hold shares,
hereby appoint: . ..

...'.

Name: • Address: -
..

E-mail ID: Signature:

or failing himlher .
./

Name: Address:

E-mail ID: Signature:

or failing himlher

Name: Address:
-

E-mail ID: Sigiature:

:
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the so" Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, September 30, 2016 at 3.30 p.m. at
Mehta Farm, Village Chhawla, beyond BSF Camp, Rajkhari , Nazabgarh Road, New
Delhi - 110071 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated .

below:

Ordinary Business

L Adoption of audited financial statementsfor the financial year ended 31sI March, 2016 and the

Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon (Ordinary Resolution).
2. Re-appointment of Mr. Shashwat Agarwal, who retires by rotation (Ordinary Resolution).
3. Re-appointment of MI s. J Agarwal & Associates, CharteredAccountants, Kanpur as Statutory

Auditors of the Company and fixing their remuneration (Ordinary Resolution). .

. -'
:'" Special Business

" -~.

4. Authorization to (i) give any loans to any person(s) or other body corporate(s), or (ii) give
any guaranteesor to provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate(s)
or person(s), or (iii) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities Of
ariy other body cbrporate(s) exceeding sixty percent of Company's paid up capital and its free
reserves and.securities premium account or one hundred percent of its free reserves and
securities premium account, provided that the total loans or investments made; guarantees
given, and securities provided shall not exceed an aggregate amount of Rs.. 50 Crares and
rectification of earlier transactions (Special Resolution) .

5. Authorization to make transactions with related party(ies) being in ordinary courseof business
and on arms length basis and rectification of earlier transactions (Special Resolution).

6. Authorization to borrow any sum or sums of money from time to time on such terms and
conditions and with or without security as the Board may think fit which, together with the
moneys already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from the :
Company's Bankers in the ordinary course of business),may exceed the aggregatefor the time
being.of the paid-up capital and its free reserves,that is to say, reserves not set apart for any _
specific purpose, provided that the total amount of money/moneys so borrowed by the Board
shall not at any point of time exceed the limit of Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores Only) -
(Special Resolution) .:

Signedthis day of ~ 2016.
. .

Signatureof shareholder: : .; .Affix 1
Rupees
Revenue
Stamp

Signatureof Proxy holder(s): .

..'

Note: 1. Thisformof proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and depositedat the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencementof
theMeeting.

2. A person can act as a Proxy on behalf of not more.thanfifty membersholding in
aggregate, not more than tenpercent of the total share capital of the Company.
Members holding more than tenpercent of the.total share capital of the Company
may appoint a single person as Proxy, whoshall not act as a Proxy for any other
Member.

...._:

. .
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ATTEDANCESLIP

30TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NIKKI GLOBAL FINANCE LIMITED
.Regd. Office: 1-9,LGF, Lajpat Nagar-L'New Delhi -110024·

CIN: L65999DL 1986PLC024493

I . .

I

DP ID/Client IDlFolio No. ~_· ~_-,-- I

No. of sharesheld I I
I Certify that I am a member/proxy for the member of the Company.

I, hereby record my presence at the 30th Annual General Meeting held-on- Friday,
. September30, 2016at 3:30p,m. at Mehta Farm, Village Chhawla, beyond BSF Camp,
Rajkhari, Nazabgarh Road, New Delhi - 110071.· . .

Name ofthe Member· . -----------~------------------------------------------'-------

Name of the Proxy

Signature --------~ ....---------------------------------------------------

Note: Please complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the Attendance
Verification Counter at the entrance of the meeting hall. Members are requested
to bring their copy of theAnnual Report/or referenceat the meeting.
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;------ ----------------------------------

Chattarpur x

-'

-
- -,

, .

Chhettarpur, Nev\l Dslh], Delhi
~
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